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IN THB SUPERIOR COURT FOR THE STATE OF ALASKA
SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT AT KOTZEBUE

N.CKOLAS PAGE,

PlaintifY,
v,

)

)

)

)

)
CTYOFROTZEBUE and )
NORMAN HUGHES, )
)

Defeodants, )

)

C e No. 2KB-07-76 CT
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IN THE SUPERIOR COURT FOR THE STATE OF ALASKA .
FOURTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT AT BEFHEL/ °~ 7 I 75

THOMAS J. OLSON,

Plaintiff,
vs.

)

)

)

i

CITY OF HOOPER BAY, )
OFFICER DIMITRI OAKS, )
OFFICER CHARLES SIMON, and )
OFFICER NATHAN JOSEPH, )
)

)

)

Defendants.
Case No. 4BE-07-26 CI

MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT OF PLAINTIFF’S OPPOSITION TO MOTION

FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENTON QUALIFIED IMMUNITY

City of Hooper B&y police officers “tased” plaintiff Thomas Olson twelve times
while he was handcuffed on the floor of his house. In the Ninth Circuit, a taser or other
“less lethal” device may be deployed on a handcuffed individual when he is a threat to the
safety of the officers or others; a taser may rarcfy, if ever, be used against a restrained
suspect for purposes of compliance only.

In this case, taking the facts in a light most advantageous to the plaintiff, it was not
legally permissible for the officers to deploy their tasers twelve to fifteen times. Because
the contours of use of force laws were clearly defined at the time of the incident by case

law, police department policies, and accepted police practices, qualified immunity does not

shield the officers from liability; defendants’ motion must be denied.

Opposition to Motion For Summary Judgment

Olson v. Hooper Bay
Case No. 4BE-07-26 Cl
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L Statement of Facts:

On or about December 26, 2006, at approximately 4 a.m., Officers Dimitri Oaks

and Nathan Joseph responded to a request for a welfare check at the home of their neighbor

Thomas J. Olson in Hooper Bay, Alaska.'

Upon arrival at Mr. Olson’s home, the two officers noticed the door on the artic
entry open, so they enter.” They then knocked on the next door and claim to have heard a
voice saying come in.” That second door opens to a ground level storage area where deep
freezers and other items are located.* To gain access into the home, the two officers had to
climb a flight of stairs on their right and go through yet another door at the top of the
stairs.’ The officers’ testimony varies as to whether this third door was opened or closed.®

The officers stepped through the third door a little after 4:00 am.” The third door
opens into one large room on the second floor.® No dividing walls are within the room.’
Upon entry into the room the officers could see easily because a dim light had been left on
in the corner of the room.'® The officers noticed everyone was asleep, except for a child
who had been awakened by the officer’s knocking.!' The two adults in the room were

. 12
asleep in separate areas, one on the sofa another on a mattress.

The officers first approached the individual on the mattress. That individual was

! See Exhibit 1.
21d
*1d
* See Exhibit 2.

s
1d
5 See Exhibit 3, p. 12 and Exhibit 4, p. 19.

7 See Exhibit 1.
Y1d

¥ See Exhibit 2.

® See Exhibit 4, p. 19.
1 [d

"2 14 at pp. 20, 22.
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their neighbor Thomas Olson."’ Given the small size of Hooper Bay everyone knew
his/her neighbor. The individual on the sofa was Thomas Olson’s brother . ~who was
also a neighbor of the officers. Officer Joseph, the supervising officer, went over to wake

him. None of the officer’s knew of Mr. Olson’s felony or teenage attempt to harm

himself.™

After the two were awake, Officer Joseph determined the two were intoxicated and
called for Officer Simon to come to the home.'® Officer Joseph reasoned that one officer
needed to watch the children while the other two officers transported Thomas Olson and
his brother to the jail." Officer Oaks did not explain why another officer was called
instead of calling the children’s mother who was nearby at her mother’s home. "’

Officer Simon and Officer Oaks stood Mr. Olson handcuffed Mr. Olson’s hands
behind his back.'® The two officers then started to escort Mr. Olson from the home, one on
each side of Mr. Olson.'® Mr. Olson stood and walked with Officer Oaks on one side and
Officer Simon on the other.?’ When Officer Simon arrived, the officers determined that
the level of Mr. Olson’s intoxication did not prevent him from maneuvering down the
stairs with his hands behind his back.”’

Mr. Olson walked between the officers. Id. The third officer, Officer Joseph was

seated a few feet away on the sofa with Mr. Olson’s brother. The three took a few steps

Y 1d atp. 20. '
" See Exhibit 3 at p.9, Exhibit 4 at p. 59, and Exhibit 5 at p. 51-52.

'* See Exhibit 3 at pp. 23, 24.
"®1d

17 /d.

'* See Exhibit 4 at pp. 22,24,
"® jd atp. 24.

0 ]d

M id atp. 29.

Opposition to Motion For Summmary Judgment

Olson v. Hooper Bay
Case No. 4BE-07-26 CI

Page 3 of 22

Exc.77




FACSIMILE 307.543.3777

E
J
2

&

¢
£

s

TELEPHOWE: 907.543.4700

PO Bex 1809 + Bechei, Alaska 99559

S
-d
2
o
o
4
(
o
=
3
Q
[a

A

and slipped or tripped over a trash bag on the floor. All three fell in a pile on the floor.”
Mr. Olson, handcuffed, fell back on his hands causing a high level of pain — which
lead to yelling and confusion.”” The two officers who fell along with Mr. Olson began to
stand up.®* At the same time, Mr. Olson began to stand also, but was unable to rise to his
feet because of being handcuffed. Instead he rose to a seated position.?*
In Mr. Olson’s efforts to regain his balance and stand, he inadvertently kicked
Officer Simon in the chest as Office Simon also attempted to stand.?® In the confusion of

the fall, which was no fault of Mr. Olson’s, everyone grew excited and the situation
escalated. As for who fell first, Oaks commented, “I don’t know, its hard to tell.
Everybody was going down,” but throughout Thomas remained handcuffed.?’

As the officers stood, Officer Joseph, who did not fall watched from the sidelines.

After seeing Mr. Olson’s foot contact Officer Simon, Officer Joseph withdrew his Taser

" and fired its two prongs toward Mr. Olson who was seated with his hands cuffed behind

his back.?

When the Taser’s two prongs hook into a person’s skin a circuit is formed which
causes an electrical shock.?? Here, a full electrical circuit was not formed by Officer
Joseph’s initial Taser discharge because only one of the two prongs hooked under Mr.
Olson’s skin. The hook under Mr. Olson’s skin caused a vibrating sensation. Officer

Joseph then released another charge, even though the circuit was not fully formed. This

12 ld.

"3 See Exhibit 2.

M See Exhibit 4 at pp. 24, 28.
* See Exhibit 2.

* See Exhibit 1.

7 See Exhibit 4 at pp. 28-29.
¥ See Exhibit 1.

? See Exhibit 5.
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caused another vibrating sensation and more confusion in the room.*°

Throughout both discharges, Mr. Olson remains seated on the floor with his hands
cuffed behind his back.’' Officer Simon and Officer Oaks state that Mr. Olson kicked at
them while in that position.”” Officer Simon reached between Mr. Olson’s legs and drive
stunned Mr. Olson on the inner thigh, within a few inches from his genitals,
It should be noted that “[a] subject’s ability to kick, or move at all, is inconsistent with the
very nature of the Taser . . . because as an electronic control weapon, [it] is designed to
immoblize the muscle groups of the person being tased to the extent that they collapse.”**
As a result, “it is doubtful if not completely doubtful that [Mr. Olson} would be physically

able to kick after being tased.”
Next, Officer Simon moved behind Mr. Olson. Officer Simon conceded that he

could have picked Mr. Olson up at that point from behind.*® Officer Oaks was safely in
front of Mr. Olson, and Officer Joseph was seated a few feet away on the side of Mr.
Olson. At this point, no officer was in range of any imminent harm. The room, having no
dividing walls, provided sufficient room for the officers to move about.>’

Officer Simeon, standing behind the seated Olson, only once attempted to [re]strain
Mr. Olson up from behind after he was in the floor.’® Instead of attempting to further

restrain Mr. Olson without tasering him, Officer Simon reaches over Mr. Olson'’s shoulder

0 See Exhibit 3.
31 See Exhibit | and Exhibit 6.
" See Exhibit 4 at pp. 36-37 and Exhibit 5 at pp. 19-20.

33 1d, Exhibit 7 and Exhibit 8.
* See Fxhibit 9.

18 /d

' See Exhibit 5 at 51.

’7 See Exhibit 4 at p. 43.

3 See Exhibit 5 at p. 51.
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and administers more drive stuns from the taser. Officer Joseph joins in¥

The officers roll Mr. Olson on to his belly. Mr. Olson, who has been tasered
multiple times, is under control, face down, and hands cuffed behind his back.** Without
provocation, Officer Joseph and Officer Simon begin to simultaneously administer
additional drive stuns to Mr. Olson’s back.*' In less than five minutes Mr. Olson was
tasered over 12 times, which caused over 20 burns to his body.42

The City of Hooper Bay trained the officers that the effects of each taser discharge
lasts up to several minutes. The officers were also trained that a person who is restrained
should only be tasered if there was a possibility of causing substantial bodily injury.*

Officer Oaks was initially trained at the Police Academy six to cight years ago. He
was not trained 1o use a taser but was instead, trained to use soft hand techniques. Later,
the Hooper Bay Police Chief, James Hoelscher, trained him taser use. Oaks testified that,
“Well, they taught us to try to talk them into standing up and not to be so aggressive and to
come along peacefully without - and how to talk them in - talk them into not doing
anything anymore .. .™** He testified that if an arrestee kicks, an officer can simply lay on
the arrestees legs with the officer’s full weight to prevent further kicking.*

Photographs taken of Mr. Olson while he was still incarcerated at the Yukon Kuskokwim
Correctional Center show the bum injuries caused by the tasering.*® Upon his release from

custody, he sought medical treatment for the taser burns and numbness to his wrists caused

¥ See Exhibit 6 and Exhibit 7.

“ See Exhibit 2, Exhibit 3 at p. 51.
41 Id

‘2 14 and Exhibit 6.

Y See Exhibit 10.

“ See Exhibit 4 at p. {1

45 /d

* See Exhibit 8.
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by the handcuffs.*” Health care providers noted 25 individual burn marks. On January 2,
2007, Mr. Olson also obtained additional photographs of his injuries.‘® Photographs taken
January 26, 2007, several weeks after the incident * and photographs taken July 17, 2007,
a half a year after the incident, reveal the severity of the bumn marks caused by the
tasering.”’

1. The Standard for Summary Judgment

Defendants, as the summary judgment movants, are required to establish that there
are no genuine issues of material fact and that they are entitled to judgment as a matter of
law.’! All reasonable inferences must be drawn in plaintiff’s favor.’? It is well

established that the evidentiary threshold necessary to preclude the entry of summary

judgment is low.’ 3 Thus, where there exists any genuine issue of material fact, the court

may not grant a motion for summary judgment.** In determining if there is a genuine issue
of material fact the court must view the facts in a light most favorable to the non-moving
party.” The party opposing summary judgment is not required to show it will prevail at
trial.*® Where reasonable minds could differ as to the facts of a case, the question is one
for the jury.”” An unresolved question of material fact precludes summary judgment.*®

In qualified immunity cases, the burden of proof requires defendant to produce

*? See Exhibit 11.
** See Exhibit 12.

*® See Exhibit 13.

% See Exhibit 14.

% Valdez Fisheries Dev. v. Alyeska Pipeline, 45 P.3d 657, 664 (Alaska 2002).

2 1d

¥ Crawford v. Kemp, 139 P.3d. 1249, 1253 (Alaska 2006).

 Moore v, State, 553 P.2d 8. 15 (Alaska 1976).

% Beck v_flgines [erminal & Highway Co., 843 P.2d 1229, 1230 (Alaska 1992).
% Gablick v. Wolfe, 469 P.2d 391, 395 (Alaska 1970).

57 Tush v. Pharr, 68 P.3d 1239, 1249 (Alaska 2003).
% 1d., See also Trembly v. Starr-Wood CardiacGroup, P.C', 3 P.3d 916, 920 (Alaska 2000).
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evidence requiring plaintiff to “go beyond his or her pleadings.” The defendant bears the
burden of demonstrating that there are no genuine issues of material fact.®

At least one commentator has noted that qualified immunity/excessive force cases
commonly involves questions of material fact that can only be resolved by a jury.(" Case

law from the Ninth Circuit indicates the same; at least one court found it impossible to rule
on qualified immunity before trial.”?

1II.  The Qualified immunity Standard
AS 12.25.070 limits the amount of force police officers may use in making an

arrest; AS 09.65.070 grants discretionary function immunity to municipal employees.
Accordingly, even if the force used by an officer is excessive under AS 12.25.070, AS
09.65.070 may still shield him from liability. To cope with the inherent conflict between
immunity and excessive force, Alaska courts have adopted a standard that “closely

conforms” with federal qualified immunity law.®

Federal law, as announced by the U.S. Supreme Court in Saucier v. Katz,*
requires application of a two part test to qualified immunity/excessive force claims. The
Alaska Supreme Court adopted this two prong test in Sheldon v. City of Ambler. Under it,
courts must first determine whether the force applied was “objectively reasonable,” if it

was, then the second inquiry is to whether or not the officer’s use of force was

% Mureno v. Baca, 431 F.3d 633, 638 (9th Cir. 2005).
“®1d
8 Karen M. Blum, The Qualified Immunity Defense: What's ‘Clearly Established’ And What's Not, 24 Touro

L. Rev. 501, 522 (2008). Compare
52 Compare Beaver v. City of Federal Way, No. CV05-1938MIP, 2006 WL 3203729 (W. D. Wash. Nov. 3,
here factual disputes exist) with Beaver v. City of Federal

2006) finding summary judgment inappropriate w.
Way, 507 F.Supp.2d 1137 (W.D.Wash. 2007)(subsequent resolution of factual disputes at trial allowed court

to grant qualified immunity).
» Sheldon v. City of Ambler, 178 P.3d 459, 463 (Alaska 2008).

#5373 U.S. 194 (2001).

Opposition to Motion For Summary Judgment
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“reasonable” was clearly excessive in light of the law then available to the officers.®
Because the second prong depends on the officers’ understanding of the law, some courts

consider it the subjectively reasonable prong.*

If “(t]he contours of the right [to use force are not] sufficiently clear that a
reasonable official would understand that what he is doing violates that right,” immunity
applies.”’ “If the law d{oes] not put the officer on notice that his conduct would be clearly

unlawful, summary judgment based on qualified immunity is appropriate.”*® For purposes
of this brief, we refer to the two prongs as “excessive force” and “qualified immunity.”

The clear separation of the excessive force inquiry from the qualified immunity
inquiry necessitates, at least in federal courts, a “rigid order of battle; "’ at the start of their
inquiry courts must apply the first prong; then, only if excessive force is found, the court
proceeds to the second prong, the qualified immunity inquiry.”® The Sheldon court
remarked that this rigid, federal ordering has been heavily criticized, but refused to rule on
whether or not Alaska courts are required to follow the same order.”!

Defendant appears to have misunderstood the brief discussion of ordering in
Sheldon, and assumes that Sheldon permits Alaska courts to decide the qualified immunity
issue without first making a finding as to excessive force.”? Because defendant does not

address the issue of excessive force in its Motion, the discussion of the first prong below is

3 Sheldon, 118 P.3d at 465.
“Id.

¢7 Saucier, 533 U.S. at 202.

8 Sheldon, 178 P.3d at 463 (citing Saucier, 533 U.S. at 202),

® Brosseau v. Hauugen, 543 U.S. 194, 201-202 (2004 Breyer, ., concurring).
® Saucier, 533 U.S. .

' Saucier footnote 37, 468.
7 Motion for Summary Judgment on Qualified Immunity, 16 (“The court need not even reach the further

question of whether there is a genuine issue of material fact over whether an officers’ behavior was
objectively unreasonable”).
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bricf.”

A.  The first prong of the Saucier test — Excessive force

The use of force in making arrests in Alaska is authorized and limited by statute:

AS 11.81.370 is an affirmative grant of power to the police, allowing an officer to use
“nondeadly force. .. to the extent the officer reasonably believes it necessary to make an

arrest.” AS 12.25.070 restricts the police power, requiring that officers “not subject a
person arrested to greater restraint than is necessary and proper for the arrest and
detention.”

Federal courts apply Graham v. Connor to excessive force claims.”® Graham
established the “objectively reasonable” standard for judging excessive force and lists

several factors trial courts should consider in applying the test. Alaska courts have also

relied on Graham in assessing excessive force.”

“[PJroper application [of the objective reasonableness test] requires careful

attention to the facts and circumstances of each particular case, including the severity of

the crime at issue, whether the suspect poses an immediate threat to the safety of the

officers or others, and whether he is actively resisting arrest or attempting to evade arrest

by flight.”"
i The officers used excessive force in arresting Thomas Olson.

At the very least, there are disputed facts that necessitate a jury’s opinion regarding

the use of force in this case. Officers arrived at Plaintiff’s house on the night of December

7 At a certain point it may be strictly academic... the case law seems to imply that qualified immunity hurdle
is a lower one than the excessive force one for defendants to clear.

™ 490 US 386 (1989).
73 Goe Wasserman v. Bartholomew, 38 P.3d 1162 (Alaska 2002).

% Graham, 490 US at 396.
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26, 2006 investigating a possible case of endangering the welfare of a child in the second

degree, a possible violation of AS 11.51.110.”" Endangering the welfare of a child in the
second degree is a violation. |

The officers entered the house and woke Plaintiff up. Plaintiff immediately asked
them to leave. At this point it is doubtful whether the officers even had probable cause to
remain in the dwelling.

Despite the assertions in their affidavits, the officers confirmed during depositions

that they had no knowledge of plaintiff’s prior felony or his attempt to harm himself.

The officers proceeded to handcuff plaintiff, and asked him to stand to do a “test.”

It is unclear from the audio of the incident whether Thomas was ever made fully aware of

exactly why police were in his house. Over a roughly ten minute period the officers tased

him twelve to fifteen times.

All of the tases occurred while plaintiff was handcuffed and on the floor: several
occurred while he was seated with his legs wrapped around a poll, and others occurred
after he had been rolled over onto his stomach. Taken in.a light most favorable to plaintiff,
any movements that the plaintiff may have made that could have resembled kicks, must be
interpreted as muscle twitches resulting from the taser applications. ® Regardless of
whether the kicks are construed as real threats to the officers or as simply spasms, the

officers admit that could have simply stood plaintiff up.

Even if Thomas was a threat to kick the officers, he had ceased becoming a threat

and was merely non-compliant at the time the officer reached between his legs to tase

" Defendants make a half-hearted attempt to characterize the investigation as one into a possible reckless !
endangerment, a violation of AS 11.41.250(a) (a misdemeanor) but it is clear from the statutory language and |
the facts of this case that this was a stretch. See Defendant’s Motion for Summary Judgment, 5.

"t See Expert Report of Michael D. Lyman, Page 6, paragraph 51.
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plaintiff’s thigh (had he been a threat, it is doubtful the officer would have wanted to put
his hand there). When plaintiff was tasered while on his stomach, there is no conceivable
way he could have been considered a threat.

Applying Graham to the facts, there is at least a jury question regarding the use of
appropriate force: at least two of the tases occurred while plaintiff was lying on his
stomach with his hands behind his back, clearly not a threat to anyone in the house.” The
other tases occurred when he did not pose a threat and the officers could have simply
reached under his shoulders and picked him up (instead of reaching between his legs and
tasing him).

B. The Second Prong of the Saucier test — Qualified Immunity

The second prong examines whether the officers’ conduct was “subjectively”
reasonable, whether the law limiting the use of force was “clearly established” at the time
of the incident and the officers were put on notice that their conduct was unauthorized.
Assessing the state of the law requires the court to survey information available to officers
at the time of the offense. Sheldon held that notice, and the contours of the law, can be |
gleaned from “look{ing] to our own jurisdiction and other jurisdictions to see if there are

any cases, laws, or regulations which would suggest that the type of action taken by the

officer is considered unlawful.”%
In Hope v. Pelzer, the U.S. Supreme Court found that notice need not come only

from cases with substantially similar facts: “officials can still be on notice that their

" Expert Report of Michael D. Lyman, page 6, paragraph 46.
® Sheldon. 466.
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conduct violates established law even in novel factual circumstances.”® “[TJhe salient
question that the Court... [should ask] is whether the state of the law [at the time of the

incident] gave respondents fair warning that their alleged treatment of [the suspect] was

unconstitutional.””?

Aside from notice provided by actual cases, the totality of facts known to officers at

the time of the incident is relevant in assessing the reasonableness of their use of force.*

However, “the subjective beliefs of the officer are, of course, irrelevant,”**

Qualified immunity is an “essentially legal” analysis, and can only be addressed by
a court when relevant, material facts are undispuled.”

i. Notice of legal use of force in excessive force/taser cases:

The Hooper Bay Police Department’s General Orders indicate that “the taser shall
not be used on a restrained or controlled subject unless the actions of the subject present an
immediate threat of death or great bodily harm or substantial physical injury.”*® The
expert’s report notes that training guidelines for taser use

prohibit[] [taser] use against anyone unless the person demonstrates an
overt intention to use violence or force against the officer or others or resists

detention and arrest and other alternatives for controlling them are not
reasonable or available under the circumstances.®’

Additionally, case law at the time of the incident put the defendants on notice that a

taser could be deployed against a handcuffed individual only if he represented an

' 536 U.S. 730, 741 (2002)
?1d (emphasis added).

8 Anderson v. Creighton, 483 U.S. 635, 641 (1987), Edgerly v City and County of San Francisco, 495 F.3d
645, 654 (5th Cir. 2007).

“ Inouye v. Kemna, 504 F.3d 705, 712 (9th Cir. 2007).

*3 Erankiin v. Fox, 312 F.3d 423, 437 (5th Cir. 2002).

* General Order, Hooper Bay Police Department, Page 2-6 (attached to Defendant’s Motion for Summary

Judgment Y emphasis added).
Y7 Expert Report of Michael Lyman, page 6, paragraph 43.
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immediate threat. For example, in Beaver v. City of Federal Way," a federal court in
Washington denied a summary judgment motion because it found that the suspect’s

movements on the ground, which defendants argued were threatening, could have
reasonably been interpreted as reactions to the taser, and not attempts to flee.”

Although it found no taser cases specifically on point, the Beaver court’s reliance
on Graham v, Connor and Billington v. Smith’® indicates that those two cases should also
serve as notice to the officers in this case. Billington, a Ninth Circuit excessive force case,
which essentially applies the Graham test discussed above, is applicable here. The Beaver
court found that these factors put the defendants on notice that muitiple tasings (the Beaver
plaintiff was tased seven times) were illegal absent a showing that he was attempting to
flee or a threat to safety. In any event, the facts were insufficient for the Beaver court to

rule, as a matter of law, that there was no threat and that the suspect was attempting to flee.

Following trial, the Beaver court’ revisited the excessive force issue. Relying on
Hope v. Pelzer, the court applied use of force standards from other, non-taser cases.”® The
court found that the use of pepper spray and police dogs involved “less lethal force”, like a
taser, and was sufficiently analogous to determine that the force was excessive. One of the
cases addressed by the Beaver court, Smith v. City of Hamet, 5 wlljch involved application
of pepper spray and bites from a police dog, was decided before December 26, 2006 and

serves as relevant notice of excessive force law for purposes of this motion.

3 No. CV05-1938MIP, 2006 WL 3203729 (W. D. Wash. November 03, 2006).

292 F.3d 1177 (9th Cir. 2002).
¥ No. CV05-1938MJP, 2006 WL 3203729 (W D. Wash. Nov. 3, 2006).

¥ Billington v. Smith, 292 F.3d 1177 (9th Cir.2002).
M 292 F.3d 1177 (9th Cir. 2002).

7 1d at
%' 394 F.3d 689 (9th Cir. 2005).
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Smith v. City of Hamet involved officers responding to a possible domestic violence
situation at a residence. During the course of the arrest, the officers deployed pepper spray

approximately five times and instructed a police dog to bite the suspect twice. The court
applied the archetypal Graham and Billington factors to determine that the use of force was

indeed excessive. The Beaver court held that Smith provided notice that a resisting
suspect, who is not particular “bellicose” and who is pinned down may not subjected to
certain levels of force; “police officers may not use force when, as here, a suspect is not a
threat, even if the suspect is not fully complying with the officer’s commands.”*

Similarly, a 2007 district court case from Michigan, Landis v. Cardoza,” relied on
pre-2007 excessive force/pepper spray cases to find that an officer’s use of a taser
constituted excessive force. The court found that it was “appropriate to draw a parallel”
between a taser and pepper spray because “[bJoth instruments temporarily incapacitate
individuals by causing pain and are intended to permit law enforcement officers to take
resisting individuals into custody without having to resort to lethal force.”® The court
analyzed Greene v. Barber,”” Vaughn v. City of Lebanon,*® and Champion v. Outlook
Nashville Inc.,” all cases holding that the use of pepper spray on a suspect who was not a
threat was excessive force. Greene held that use of pepper spray was excessive force, even
when the suspect was resisting arrest but still not a threat. Reasoning that tasers are

substantially similar to pepper spray, the court found that the same standards applied to use

% Beaver, 507 F.Supp.2d at | 149 (the Beaver court ultimately found that the officers were immune, in part
because Smith was decided after the Beaver cvents).
% 515 F.Supp.2d 809 (E.D. Mich. 2007).

™ Ibid. at 814.
%7 310 F.3d 889 (6th Cir.2002).
18 Fed. Appx. 252, 2001 WL 966279 (6th Cir.2001).

% 380 F.3d 893 (6th Cir.2004).

Opposition to Motion For Summary Judgment

Olsonv Hooper Buy
Case No. 4BE-07-26 CI

Page 15 of 22

Exc.89

&




Attorneys At Law

3
2
o)
o
Z
<
o
=
=
O
[a 3}

PO Box 1809 * Bethel, Alaska 99559

TEEMIONE: 907 543.4,00
FACNIMILE: 07 5433777

of a taser.

Despite the lack of reported taser cases, there are a substantial number of
unreported ones. In the following cases from the Ninth Circuit (all decided prior to
December 26, 2006), courts found that the use of a taser where there was no threat to
officer or third party safety was excessive: Muro v. Simpson'® (holding that tasing a non-
compliant subject who had been rendered helpless by a previous taser application is
excessive force), Harris v. County of King'® (discharge of a taser on a compliant suspect
when the officer’s safety is not in jeopardy is clearly excessive), Hudson v. City of San
Jose'™ (even though a suspect was resisting arrest within the definition of the penal code,
he was “pretty much incapacitated”, requiring that the officers’ summary judgment motion
on the use of taser and baton be denied), Rios v. City of Fresno'® (taser use was excessive
where plaintiff was smaller than the officers, was arrested for a minor offense, and there
was conflicting testimony regarding the extent of “resistance”), and LeBlanc v. City of Los
Angeles (the single most important factor in the excessive force inquiry is the threat posed
by the suspect — a jury could reasonably conclude that applications of a taser on a
handcuffed, schizophrenic suspect who was overdosing on drugs was excessive).

In four of the cases cited abave, Muro, Harris, Hudson, and Rios, not only was the
force found excessive, but the courts found the contours of the law sufficiently clear (there
was “notice”) to defeat the second prong of the Saucier inquiry as well. Clearly then, on

December 26, 2006, when defendants entered plaintiff’s home, the contours of the law

"% Not Reported in F.Supp.2d, 2006 WL 2536609, E.D.Cal.,2006. No. 1:03-CV-6619 OWW SMS. Aug. 31,

2006
199 Slip Copy, 2006 WL 2711769 W.D.Wash September 21, 2006 No. C05-1121C.
2 Not Reported in F Supp.2d, 2006 WL |128038N.D Cal.,2006. April 27, 2006April 27, 2006

19 Slip Copy, 2006 WL 3300452, E.D.Cal.,2006. November 14, 2006No. CV-F-05-644 OWW/SMS
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regarding the use of force, and the use of tasers specifically, were clear enough to put
officers on notice that some conduct was impermissible. If plaintiff in the instant case
shows a dispute of fact which would place the defendants’ conduct outside the contours of

that right, summary judgment is inappropriate and the motion must be denied.

ii. Notice applied to the facts of the instant case:

There is significant disagreement in this case between the facts alleged in the
officers’ affidavits (attached to defendants’ Motion for Summary Judgment), the versions
of the incident the officers recounted in the depositions, Plaintiff’s version of the incident
as contained in his affidavit, and the facts revealed by the audio recording. Taken in a light
most favorable to the Plaintiff, however, the relevant facts are:

o Plaintiff was tased twelve to fifteen times. All of these occurred while he
was handcuffed on the ground.
¢ Some of the tases occurred while plaintiff was seated on the ground with
his legs wrapped around a poll. Plaintiff and plaintiff’s expert have found
that any kicks that occurred while he was in this position were the result of
the taser, and did not pose a threat to the officers. Even if this
interpretation of the “kicks” is discounted, it is uncontested that an officer
felt safe enough to reach between plaintiff’s legs to tase him. It is also
uncontested that the officers could have stood him up if they wanted.
e The other tases occurred while plaintiff was lying face down on his
stomach. Plaintiff was clearly not a threat in this position.
At several points during the tasing officers told plaintiff to “comply” before

tasing him. This indicates that the tases were done for compliance
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punoses, and not to bring a suspect who posed a threat under control.

o Desgpite what was claimed in defendants’ affidavits, the officers at
plantiff’s house that night had no knowledge of his prior felony or that
‘Thomas may have attempted to commit suicide.

As the Beawr court denied the motion for summary judgment based on reasonable
interpretation of the suspect’s movements on the ground, so should this court deny
defendants’ motionbased on a reasonable interpretation of plaintiff’s “kicks.” Plaintiff’s
expert opines that te “kicks” could only reasonably be interpreted as reactions to the taser,
and that it is not likely that an individual tased as much as plaintiff to even be able to
kick.'®

The officen further knew that taser’s are a “less lethal weapon” that should only be
used in limited ciroumstances.'” Case law and the officer’s own training put them on
notice that plainti fiwas not a threat during the incident and that tases in order to provoke
compliance were inproper. In sum, the facts indicate at least a dispute regarding the threat
posed by Plaintiff it the time he was tased. Taken in a light most favorable to Plaintiff, he
posed no threat, and the tases can only be justified as a means of compliance. However,
after one tase without result, further tases, much less fifieen were impermissible on these

grounds. As discused in the previous section, such tases were outside the contours of the

law.

Additionalfactors for the court to consider are the facts that was

restrained at the time of the tasings, meaning plaintiff was outnumbered by officers three-

1 Expert Report of Michael D. Lyman, page 7, paragraph S1. A
195 The ailegations fren the affidavits that the officers thought a taser did not cause pain are absurd. Not only

did the officers testi fyat deposition that they did know it was painful, they werc no doubt aware of high
profile deaths involving the use of tasers on the West Coast. See
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to-one; there is no allegation that plaintiff ever advanced toward the officers or at any time
was in any way capable of harming officers who were not standing directly in front of him
(why didn’t the officers simply stand behind him and pick plaintiff up?); and because he
was handcuffed on the floor, plaintiff’s range of movement was severely limited.

In light of these facts, Smith v. City of Hamet, Beaver, Hudson v. City of San Jose

gave defendants “fair warning” that it was illegal to tase defendant if he did not pose a

threat.

LY. The tasings were punitive

Immunity in excessive force cases is “qualified,” meaning it does not protect

officers for all conduct; malicious or corrupt actions by municipal employees are not

afforded any immunity protections.'*

In this case there are no admissions which would indicate that the officers deployed
their tasers punitively or maliciously; we would expect no such admissions. However, the
facts of the strikes would permit a jury to arrive at that conclusion:

e The strikes on Thomas’s thigh: a jury could reasonably conclude that they
were intended to strike Thomas’s genitals, and therefore meant to be
punitive. Thomas indicates in his affidavit that the officers were trying to
tase his genitals, and, indeed, there is little other explanation for what would
cause an officer standing behind plaintiff, who was seated at the time, to
reach over him and tase the plaintitf on the inner thigh. Such tases can have
no legitimate police purpose and are clearly malicious.

Thomas was tased twelve to fifteen times: a jury could reasonably /

1% See Thoma v. Hickel, 947 P.2d 816, 818-819 (Alaska 1997).
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conclude that tasing someone who is restrained on the floor fifteen times

over aroughly five minute period was malicious. Indeed, many of the tases
were continous, meaning only a few seconds passed between the times
when one tase ended and another began. With such a short interval between
tases, there is no way the officers could have intended them to accomplish
any legitimate purpose.

As an alternative theory to what was discussed above, defendants’ motion must be

denied because, taking the facts in a light most beneficial to plaintiff, the tases were

malicious.

Y.  Contrary case law
Defendants cite two authorities in their Motion that appear to run counter to the

cases cited in this brief. One, a Minnesota case, Schumacher v. Halverson,'” held that a
single tasing of a non-compliant suspect was not excessive. This case has limited value to
the present case; even if the defendants thought that a single tase of a suspect was within
the contours of the law on December 26, 2006, the cases from the Ninth Circuit cited
above still gave them “fair warning” that repeated tases aimed solely at compliance were
improper.

Defendants also attached an order from a recent Kotzebue case, Nicholas Page v.
Ci{yvof Kotzebue,"® 10 their Motion. Although the Order grants a defense motion for

summary judgment based on qualified immunity, it’s unclear exactly what facts the court

relied on. Most significantly however, the Kotzebue court’s order improperly relies on the

1% 2KB-07-76 Cl
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finding “that the officers subjectively believed the use of the Taser was necessary and not
improper.” Although the second prong of the test is sometimes called the “subjectively
reasonable” prong, the subjective beliefs of the officers are not relevant to the inquiry.'®
CONCLUSION

Taken in a light most favorable to plaintiff, the facts indicate that he was not a
threat to defendants during the incident on December 26, 2006. Case law and taser
training materials put the police on notice that using the taser to make plaintiff compliant
was outside the contours of the law. As a result, defendants are not entitled to qualified

immunity; the Motion for Summary Judgment must be dismissed upon this party at the

address below.

DATED thisodd 44y of May, 2008 at Bethel, Alaska.

POWER and BROWN, LLC
Attomeys for Plaintiff

By: ;&&%M ég
Ryan Jerman

ABA No. 0711073
L ovoSove.

TELEPHONE. 907.541.4700

' See Inouve, 504 F.3d at 712.
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IN THE SUPERIOR COURT FOR THE STATE OF ALASKA
FOURTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT AT BETHEL

THOMAS J. OLSON,

Plaintiff,
vs.

OFFICER DIMITRI OAKS,
OFFICER CHARLES SIMON, and
OFFICER NATHAN JOSEPH,

)

)

)

)

)

CITY OF HOOPER BAY, )
)

)

)

)

Defendants. )
)

Case No. 4BE-07-26 CI

ORDER ON DEFENDANT’S MOTION FOR

SUMMARY JUDGMENT ON QUALIFIED IMMUNITY

The Court, having been duly advised, considered the briefings of the parties and all

supporting evidence, HEREBY FINDS that Defendants’ Motion for Summary Judgment

on Qualified Immunity is DENIED.

DATED:

HONORABLE LEONARD R. DEVANEY
SUPERIOR COURT JUDGE




IN THE SUPERIOR COURT FOR THE STATE OF ALASKA
FOURTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT AT BETHEL

THOMAS J. OLSON,

Plaintiff,
Vs,

)

)

)

)

)

CITY OF HOOPER BAY, )
OFFICER DIMITRI OAKS, )
OFFICER CHARLES SIMON, and )
OFFICER NATHAN JOSEPH, )
)

)

)

Defendants.
Case No. 4BE-07-26 CI
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On 12.26-08 3t approximatety 0402 hours the Hooper Bay Police Departrrent received a3 caff from .
wanting officers 1o 9o do a welfara check on her live in

arinking. Officer Demetn Oaks and | resporded 1o the comptainy.

OBSERVATION:

Upon arrival of the esidence ) observed both the arctic entrance dogy and the inside door to
the door approximately four mes and heard a faint voice stating come jn, as we antered ang
39ain and hearg the same faint voice say coma in, | then went to tha top of the stairs and saw

on the couch, I then looked to the €ast of the residence and observeqd another person o e passed out on the bed, ! then
walked to towargs the person on the couch ang Saw that there werg three toddlers rang;

be wide open, | knocked on
went upstairs | knocked

Spassing. | then toiy him to place his hands behind hig p, for now, and that the handeuffs \Were being placed an him
- safaty reasong, Afier getting the restraints on Boya 1 then triad 1o wake up ! who is Boya's brother. | tried savery)
1es to wake up | “but was Unsuccessfyl.

Instructed them to take Boya (o the Police Department, Thomas then starteq slmggﬁng with Cpl. Simon and Officer

Oaks, both slipped from the trash on the flogr and fell to the Roor. “kept irying to get up, I had to put him on the

couch at least thrae times and tail him to stay put, and while Cpl. Simon and Officer Oaks were struggling with Boya 1
eg get raady (o kick, | askeq him severgt times if he was 9oing 1o kick, ang that he stated “yes | am going

too.” | than grabbed him any Placed him down to the floor ang when ha statag that he's not going to do anything | put him
onto the couch and held him down with his leg's together so ha wouldn't kick,

Boya then used his wrapped hig legs around the beam ang woulan't let go, Co!. Simon ang Officer Oaks wera. Cpl,
Simon then conlinued to instruct Boya to 1at go of the beam but Buya would net listen g the instrictions that Cpi. Simon

Wwas giving him, Cpl. Siman than threatenad 1o use his taser 1o drive stun Roya i he continued not to complydT heard Cpl.
Simoen's taser 90 off when | wae helding | to the couch ang looked to sea what was going on, Boya th yelled out "is

ey
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OBSERVATION: continye...

Even being drve stunned Several times he dig not comply. When Boya started kicking again ) observed Officer
get kicked twice on the teg and fell down, Boya then started moving towards Officar Oaks, 1 pulled out my taser and A
deployed, the prongs landed on Boya's nght shouider one in the lining of his jacket where it didn"t make contact with hig 4
skin | deployed two Cycles Boya was not able to feel the cycla going throngh because one did not make any contact with

3

.
then grabbed him and put him onto the floor he kicked towards Cpl. Simon again | made another contact after the contaey ]
I got knckem the chest, and when Boya want onto his belly I made two more contacts, an that was when he finally

stopped fighting. Boya was repeatedly instructed to stop resisting by Officer Simon. )
lNFORMATIDN: ‘ }
That Boya was escorted to the police department by Officer Simon and myself onee at the police department, | tock ’
pictures of where the prongs were, and Offlcer Simon assisted with taking pictures of where Boya was drive stunned. i ]
The toddlers that were inside of the residence warg : 2 or 3 years of age,’ 1 or 2 years of age, *
sbout 1 yearg of age, and a newbom, That | tried to get the dates of birth from there mom . but she had

become uncooperative, and would not give the dates of births for the kids that weve in the resikience ang would not
confirm the names of the kids, Boya complained about his wrist hurting and that we tried to get the on health side
Lorraine Tomaganuk but she stated that there js nothing they could do for him while he is to intoxicated and that he can
go to the clinic tater on when he is saber. Officar Simon went to the residence of Thomas "Boya” Otson and

residenice, | was later escorted to tha police depariment by Officer Oaks after Boya was processed, Officer

“imon remained at the residence of Thomas “Boya" Olson and 'S residence, until someong went to the
Jidence,
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in the chest ang legs. Officer Simon was kicked on the chest and twice on the leg on to the right thigh and the other to
the left shin Gausing pain and discomfort fo his legs, Boya then twrned to Officer Oaks kicked him twice on the left isg and { }
continued to kick at Officer Oaks when he was on the floor. | deployed my taser when | was hokting down to the

ouch and a few minytes later | got kicked on the chest when I went to Mmake a second contact after nothing happened

on the first two cycles of my taser, the kick placed ma in fear of imminent physicat injury. making rme think that | was
g0ing to get hurt,

I arrested ang charged 0n four counts of reckless endargerment after investigation revealed that had
been drinking alconal 3and was pasted out on tha couch with three toddlers
and one unidentified new bom in the residence with both the arctic entrance and nside door to be wide open. with
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b DEPT. OF PUBLIC SAF e
: ETY 12/28/2008
I Revaring Omcy Iv.mo ™ etiguirg Adarcy Detach g |
13207 (YEY 100 Demetyi Oaks D010 IHOOPG' Bay Police ‘ lond ! HB PD l
SUPPLEMENT
INFORMATION:
Traton 12/26/2006 = arproximately 0355 nours . called the Hooper Bay Poiice Department and stated

asked if us police officers could check on her kids at her house because Thomas . [BOYA] Oison | was drunk and that
he might be alone with the kids.

Sergeant Nathan Joseph ang myself respond to Thomas J. [Boya)] Olson residence.

OBSERVATION;

to be passed out on a bed and to be passed out on couch and that there was three young kids and an infant
On another bed ang that the residence was a mess.
INFORMAT!QN:

Sergeant Joseph then woke up Thomas Qison toig him to put his hands behind his back and that he was under arrest for
endangering the welfara of his kids,
"3T. Joseph then woke up, + after we cuffed up Thomas and SGT. Joseph then hand cuffed peter.

JL Joseph then called Base and had them call Cpl. Charles Simen to come and assist us and to call . to
rome and take care of her kids.

As CPL. Simon amiveq him and | tried to take Boya Olson out of the residence and he wrapped his legs around a pola,

Sgt. Joseph then took out his taser whils he wag holding down | and he tased Thomas Olson and that made
Thomas corporate ang te be Taken to the police depariment by Sqt, Joseph and Cpl. Siman and | stayed with . and
the kids

Cpt. Simon then relumed and we brought , to the Hooper Bay Police Department -
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IN THE SUPERIOR COURT FOR THE STATE OF ALASKA

FOURTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT AT BETHEL

THOMAS J. OLSON,

PlaintifT,
73

)
)
)
)
)
CITY OF HOOPER BAY, )
OFFICER DIMITRI OAKS, ) |
OFFICER CHARLES SIMON, and )
OFFICER NATHAN JOSEPH, )
)
)
)

Defendants.
Case No. 4BE-07-26 C1 P

PLAINTIFF'S OPPOSITION TO MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT

Exhibit 2 ¥
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IN THE SUPERIOR COURT FOR THE STATE OF ALASKA

FOURTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT AT BETHFI.

THOMAS J. OLSON., )
)
Plaintiff, )
VS, )
)
CTTY OF HOOPER BAY, )
OFHCER DIMITRI OAKS, )
OFFICER CHARLES SIMON, and )
OFFICER NATHAN JOSIEPH, )
)
Defendants. )

B ~ ) Case No. 4BE-07-26 CI

AFFIDAVIT OF THOMAS J. OLSON

STATE OF ALASKA
)ss.
FOURTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT

homas J. Olson, being first duly sworn. upon oath deposes and states as

follows:

1. My name is Thomas 1. Olson. I am over 21 years of age and fully competent in

all respects to make this Affidavit. I have personal knowledge of all facts

stated herein, except as otherwise qualified, and all such facts are true and

correct.
2 Fam the plontiifin the sbove referenced natter.
3. Hive with my companion. cand our six children inan npstairs

apartment in Hooper Bav, Alaska.

!, O or about December 25, 2000, there swere 3 doors that the otticers had to

walk through to pet o into our living quarters.

Page 1ot s
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“were sleeping where they normally sleep.

One door was the outside artic entry door; the next door opened into the
downstairs storage area of our home, and the next door was at the top of the
stairway leading into our living space.

When anyone walked into our living space, they could see the entire area,
because no walls blocked the view,

On or about December 25, 2006, the door at the artic entry would not stay
closed and would pop open on its own. We eventually had to get a new door
because it wouldn't stay closed. Two other doors separated that door from our
living space.

On or about December 25, 2006, the living space was very warm. | understand
even the officers agree with this.

On the evening of December 25, 2006, my brother, .and I drank a
couple cups of homebrew. Because I limited my drinking, I have a clear

memory of events that occurred on that night.

Our two older children were spending the night with their grandparents. Later
in the evening, we put our tive year old. our 3 1/2 yearold and our ! 1/2 year
old to bed. Then. nursed our I month old baby and put her to bed.
Alter she put our baby to bed, she went to her mother’s house to get some
hlack pull. sclosed the door at the top of the stairs.

Foot tred of waiting tor to come back so I went to bed. The kids

spent the night and slept on

our cotich.

Sametime alter 4:00 a.m. 1 was sound asleep when Nathan Joseph and Dimitri

2

-

o
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Oaks came into my house and woke me up. | was not “passed out,” | was just

asleep like everyone else in the village at that time of moming. As soon as

they woke me up. they rolled me over and cuffed my hands behind my back. |

did not know why they were there or who let them in the apartment.

13 Tknew that I had done nothing wrong so I asked them what s going on. [ told

them to [eave and that they were trespassing. 1 told them several times that

they were trespassing and that | hadn’t done anything wrong. Fven so, | did

not resist when they put the handeutts on me.

14 I knew that these officers had a bad reputation for arresting and tasing people

in Hooper Bay for no reason.

15. My kids and I were all asleep. Nobody was hurt or in danger. My kids were

only harmed when the officers barged into our house, woke everybody up
caused a horrible scene.

J6. I'he officers say that they knocked on the door at the bottom of the stairs.
Because of the officers” knocking. [ believe that my four year old son was

awakened by their knocking and opened the door at the top of the stairs.

17. Officer Joseph radiocd for Charles Simon.
18. When Charles Simon arrived, he and Dimitri Oaks stood me up to take me
19, As we walked out. one of them slipped on something on the oor. I his

deposition | heard Ouks say it was a trash bag. When he slipped he pulled t

rest of us down,

0 I did not struggle or cause the fall. There was no “<lime™ on the Hloor,

21 Al three of us fell to the Hloor. 1 didn™t know what was going on. [ ried to

Page 3 ot'5
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stand up with the officers again, but was unable to get my feet under me,
because my hands were cuffed behind my back and I could not get my balance.
As T'tried to stand. Joseph tased me from where he was sitting. Al felt was a
vibration. After attending the officers’ depositions, [ understand now that was
because only one of the two prongs initially contacted me.

Then, Simon began tasing me on my back. This was much more severe than
the first tase from Joseph and really hurt. At one point, Simon even reached
between my legs and tased me on my inner thigh close to my private parts.
['became very afraid. as would any man. so I wrapped my legs around the pole
in our house.

I wish the officers had talked to me more so that I could have understood what
was going on.

Instead of talking to me. the officers woke me in the middle of the night with a
{Tashlight in my face, cuffed me, dragged me to the tloor. then tased me
repeatedly even reaching toward my privates and burning me there.

Simon continued tasing me, and he and Oaks told me to let Lo ot the beam, but
I could not understand what was going on.

After attending the ofticers’ depositions [ now understand that this is common
among people who have been tased to not understand what the otticers are
commanding. | learned that a person who is tased can not he expected to
understand the otticer’s commands for up (v several minutes.

When Tdid not respond to their commands. Joseph joined Simon and just kept

tasing me. They tased me repeatedly on my stomach while Twas laving on my

=23
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back, Then, they rolled me over onto my stomach and tased me on my back at

the sare time -- together.

30.  I'wason the floor the entire time while they burned me with the taser. Oakg
did nothing to stop them,
1. Each time the oflicers taged me, the muscles in my body reacted, including the

muscles in my legs.
32, Other than Joseph’s Girst taser when [ felt a vibration, each time they tased me

after that it was really painful,

- 33, By the time the officers finally calmed down, they had tased me so many times
that I had at feast 22 bumn marks on my body. I had trouble walking at that

point because of the multiple burns to my body and severe Pain it caused.

END OF AFFIDAVIT.

DATED this A9 _day of May, 2008, at Hooper Bay, Alaska,

TEh ), onsmdn
"IL’IL-IOMAS OLSON

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN 1o before me on the 3‘7.435}' of May, 2008,

ut Hooper Bay, Aluska.
s AU Ty fosd M e cd o,
Notary Public
State of Alaska

eym.f/cfr.-\e |
My eotnmissian eXpin:s':u/___ At
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IN THE SUPERIOR COURT FOR THE STATE OF ALASKA

FOURTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT AT BETHEL

THOMAS J. OLSON,

Plainuff,

Vs,

)

)

)

)

)

CITY OF HOOPER BAY, )
OFFICER DIMITRI OAKS, )
OFFICER CHARLES SIMON, and )
OFFICER NATHAN JOSEPH, )
)

)

)

Defendants.
Case No. 4BE-07-26 Cl

PLAINTIFF'S OPPOSITION TO MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT

Exhibit 3
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son v. Hocper Bay

—
l,...o

4BE-07-26 CI

Ay P
IN THE SUPERIOR COURT FOR THE STATE OF ALASKA 1 INDE X
FOURTH U DICIAL DISTRICT AT BETHEL 2
£ THOMAS JOESON. } 2
4 ) 4 EXAMINATION BY: PAGUsY
Plamtatl. ) 5
- ) 5} Mr Brown 6
v } 7
: ! AOEXHIBITS: IDENTHIED
TOGTY OF HOOPER HAY. ) Lo
OFFICER DIMTIREOAKS. ) (10 F - Artidavit of Nathan loseph RN
OFLICER CHARLES SIMON and } 11
OFHICER NATHAN JOSEPHL ) 12 G- Police report 35
) 13
o Defendams. ) 14
B e R 15
L No JRE-07-00026 C1 16
17
B VOILTME 18
4 19
v VIDEOTAPED DEPOSITION OF NATHAN JOSEPH 20
R 21
0 taken on behalf of the Plaintit?, pursiant to notice. af the 22
.3 Seabion Corporation Boardroom, Heoper Bay. Alaska. before 23
4 Scan E. Brown, a Netary Public tor the State of Alaska. 2
i 25
Fajze 3 [TINEN
APPEARANCES 1 Hooper Bay. Alaska. Aprif 23, 2008
2 2
3 For the Plaintiff: 3 MROBROWN: Suit yourself, You fook good. All
4 SEAN E. BROWN 4 right. Once again, 'l say (he same thing at the heginning,
5 POWER & BROWN, LLC 5 we're here on Thomas Olson versus City of Hooper Bay. Otlicer
& Box 1809 6 Dimitri Oaks. Otfficer Charles Simon, Otticer Nathan Joseph.
B Bethel. Alaska 99559 7 case number 4BE-07-20 CL My name is Sean Brown. 'm
4 (907) 543-4700 8 plaintitf's attorney but I'm also a notary for the State of
2 9 Alaska so ean issue an oath 1o vou. ! you'd raise your
10O For the Defendants: L0 right hand and state your name”?
Tl 11 MR.JOSEPILE: Nathan Joseph.
L2 MATTHEW WIDMER Le tOnath administered)
13 ANGSTMAN LAW OFFICE N MROOSEPH: Yes.,
4 Box 383 i MR BROWN: Think veu. A oght. And | think
[ Bethel Alaska 99559 1'% evervone pretty much knows who's here by now so we'll just -
T (W07 543-2672 v ehgoed. Al rght Okay.

- WILLIAM HOINGALDSON

L INGALDSON, MAASSEN & FIT/GERALD. PC
811 West Third Avenue

Anchorage, Aluska 99501

(907) 258-8750

NATHAN JOSE PH

caited ds aositpess fere noon aehialt of the

Plainnft hay ing heen duly swor upen oath
Bo M Sean B Brewr, Netars Publics s

crdanmened and testificd s fodlow:

o ANV TTON '
«V‘UYURJWUWN: }

i

|

Iq

TRAMSCRTPTT N SUPPART SERVICES
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v, Hooper Bay

4BE-07-26 1

@

D"

-

1
-,
-

PN

< e
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So. Mr Joseph, could you state and spell your name and
give your address. please?

Nathan Joseph. N-t1-t-h-a-n. J-o-s-e-p-h PO Box

Hooper Bay. Afaska, 99604

And how teny have you been a member of the Hooper Bay
Pohee Department”

Just about Tl years,

AH right. And how - what type of training have you
recerved dunny those 11 years?

Well, back in 19 1 had a -- a4 basic VPO trainimg up in
Rotzebue. 1owas for two weeks. A few months later,
had the advanced VPO training up -- down in King Salimon
and just recendy. D eraduared trom the 10-week VPSO
trnning.

Congratulations,

..... in Sitka.

And was any of the training that you just mentioned --

|
|
|
|

e oL T

o

Q And who has ld you that?

A Ive had that training from Chiet Hoelscher who's gn
instructor on the taser and I've had it again down in
Sitha by Corporal Grantineau (ph),

Q What sbuut a choke-hokd. 1s that considered a hard hand
or 3 seft hand?!

v Choke hold? Definitely aot using sott hund.

) Sothat wonld be hard hand then?

A Thatwomd be right, they're using deadly toree.

Q2 What thout 'ust wrapping sour hunds around someone.
helding them. s that hard hund or soft hand?

A et wauld depend on where you're tolding onte them,

QO lellme

A Seesif vou - it you were holding a person around the
Rody

Q  Mm-hmm.

A thars not considered using hard hand. 1S just

restraining them.

veu swere here carlier when Dimitri Oaks testified. Was .3
any of the traiming you just mentioned the same as what 19 Okay. Sois that soft hand or s it not solt hand
NMr. Oaks had”? L cither?

The first one, yes. J10A s just restraining 4 person.

Okay. .And where was that training speciticaily? 27 So what's selt hand?

Fhat was -- that rrain -- that first training | had was £3 A Softhand is when you put vour hand on somebody. ask them
up in Kotzebue, 4 10 come with vous.

Okay. And what was the name of that, if you remember? 15 ) Okay. Onthe night that you went over to Thomas Ofson's

Tage Eoape 3

Basic VPO training. 1 house -- well, let's back up. Firstof all, I've asked

And during that tramning, at that time, were there tasers 2 everyone else. ') ask vou too. What is Mr. Olson's
used? 3 criminal history?

No. 4 A Mr Olson's eriminal history? In the past, he has been

So. based upon the training you received at that point, 5 assaultive, uncooperatis ¢ and combative with palice
what was considered reasonable and legal -- or without £ otficers.
being legal, just reasonable? What was considered i Q Mlright. Are you aware of anything that happened 11)
reasanable as far as use of force if someone was not i Lears ago”
coming along? 3 A No.

Well, reasonable would he soft hand and if that didn't L5 0 Alright. Soif your attoreys made any reference that
work, forcing would be used. [f that didn't work, we'd il you had knowledge of something that happened 10 vears
gu to a hard hand. [fthere wasn't -- a hard hand didn't Te ago. that would be not accurate. is chat right?
work, we'd go to @ impact weapon. S0 You'd have o consult them aboat it fiest,

What is hard hand” L4 Q el me what happened to Mr. Olson 10 vears agu.

It's when we hit sumebody with our elbow. fist. hnees. F2y Dwouldnt know what happened to Mr. Olson 10 vears ago

Okay - Adbvinhe And was hard anded ieree used en Me § 25 @0 Okay And then have vou ever i etigated M. Ofwir
Olon? : SOy otRer ine o anvthing e s done e bomselt?

N, oo Notthat fean reeall,

Why not ! ’ YO DRy Sovon gre the ore tha e dhont Sime s e the

Iwasm't necossan ! foor,

vad the trainir e that vou have recened up antil now ‘ Vooves

mdicates that 1's maore reascnable to use 4 taser than
WS 1o hit semeone,
I my experience. d taser is more reasenabie than hitting

wemehody | yes

T me swhat slime i
Voosdme s opretty sHmy en the Qoers e oo was
reliv sdick

JHne ustieaily slippen,

Faen when oy ‘x:\',"Pk\j an bt el hike

SUPEORT BERVICES
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Olson v. Hcorer Bay 4BE-07-26 CI

I

byt P
() Couldit... 1 dour and then the next door apen, is that correct?
G A oand you had to keep your balance just to waik on the 2 A Vs, E

3 tloor. 3Q  All right. So you're downstairs and then you decide to
4 Q Could it have been from the snow un your shoe? 4 20 on upstairs, s that right?

5 A No. D A Yes, to where the kids had come in.

6 Allright. Now, you were seated most af the time with A QS you go upstairs and you vpen the door? E
7 , isn‘t that right? ! A The upstairs door? There was no upstairs door at that

3 A Yes. 7 4 tme. if there is even a dJoor now,

P Andin your report. there's reference by \Mr Oaks that 2 Allright. Welt, Mr. Oaks testitied carlier that there "
ve there was a garbaze hag with garbage in it and | believe KT was an upstairs door. |2
11 Mr. Simon says the same thing. Neither one ol them LA The entrance. | remember a door, o
s mentioned this shine on the floor and they 're the ones 120 Albright. So you go upstairs and you open whatever it
13 that were standing up most of the time, right”? 13 15, a board. a door, whatever. and vo in and you said it n
4 A They weren't the only ones standing. 1 was standing up N was hot 1nside, 15 that nght? D
15 also. L3 A Yes, it was hot inside the house.

16 Q Okay. Well now, Mr. Oaks stated that you were actually | 24 0 \nd when I'm talkiny about that, I'm talking about what .
17 scated holding Is that inaccurate? 17 you said in your police report. not just now, that it was 1 ]
i Yes, 12 hot inside there, right? .
Okay. Where were you standing? L9 A Yes,
I was standing next o at the couch. 200 Were the lights on or off? ”
And how far was that from the action going on? 21 A There was one light in the room and it was pretty dim, i
I'd say about six feet. 22 Q  Okay. Now, you said you slipped. Did you slip going up Y
Out of kicking distance though? 23 the stairs or was it at the top of the stairs? .
Yes. 24 A Atthe top of the stairs. i
And out of biting distance. B 25 0 Before you got off the stairs or once you were off the {2
Foge 11 Fige
Yes. 1 stairs? .i :
Were you focused on or were you focused on Boya 2 A Oncel was off the stairs and past the trash can. b

3 controf? 3 Q Okay.

4 A I'was--{ was mainly focused on | 4 A The trash bag, not the can, trash bag.

S Q  Solets talk about what happened that night when yougot | 5 Q There was a trash bag on the floor. r

: £ to the residence. 6 A Yes. onthe tloor.

T A Okay, 7 Okay. All right. And that had the garbage in it that we

S Q  Tell me about it, ] were tatking about carbier? ;

A When we got to the residence after receiving aphone call | 9 A Yes. L
16 from Boya's girlfriend, ’ , who they have 10 Q Allright. Now, that second door was actually an arctic
- quite a bit of kids together, got to the house. It was 11 entry also. isn't it? 1 mean, there's arctic entry or
| after 4:00 in the moming. I saw that both doors were 12 the port, as you call it here. but even under their {j
N open, the arctic entrance and the main door (o the house. 13 house. that's kind of an arctic entry also. They don't

, o ! knocked on the inside door about tour times ind then 14 really live downstairs, do they?
! oo one of the kids answered the door saying come in so we 15 A No. i
! " went in. We went up the steps. That's where | aimost { o Q  Allright. Did you know that before vou went there that 3
Jipped was atthe top by - by the trash, a pla,tic hag N right”
and atrash heap. Right - right - right when | stepped ’ 2% A Not that }remember, .
P past that. | atmost slipped and [ saw that Wis on ! Q0 Okav, Well, you were tiking abeat all these ascauls
‘ the couch, Lo and thirgs. Have vou never investicated any of them”
O bet's - F'msorny wonterrupt you but, fust so I'm fa1 A No
[ earher P'monataare Landerstand. so vou vo /0 the S A ribt So how did vouknow ghout them?!
! , first door 1A He's had g past histors with other police officers tha
CoA Yes 1 responded o cals,
! 0 . d from yeur vantage point, you can see the first f 25 kay Did you know abogt that right then? ‘
Y T EENETE 2 s v ——ry -
@ ey — ey ;
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Olson v. Hooper Bay 4BE-07-26 CI
- , Ve
v Yos, 1 A Yes
0 () Tel me specifically what you knew going in. 7 Q  And the children are awake by now because you've been
1A | knew that he's been assaultive towards pohice officers 3 knocking on the doors, right”?
3 in the past. 4 MR. INGALDSON: Objection, foundation.
> 0 Okay, Who? 5 Q) They're not awake?
& A lean't remember which ones. o A Some of them are already awahe.
7T ) Whotold you that”? Ty Thats what L <nd. So...
A Pwasn'told by any of them. Tread. A Yeusdid all of them.
O Whatdid you read” Py Okav. So how many were awake?
Divon Fread that he's been assaultive with polhce cfticers, P10 A I don't remember.
1l uncooperative Ll € Youdon't remember!
SO0 Where did -- where'd you read that? ! 1. A No.
22 A inthe police Jepartment. 113 Q Okay. So you get to the top of the steps and there's
11O Where? i 14 actually a wall there behind the steps. right? 1 mean, a
L2 A I'm not going o account tor detals of where, Ity in PLs stanted wall 50 it -- as you come up, you can see¢ into
iE the paper work. L6 the room? Do you remember that?
7 Q  Okay. Inecd to know where because I'd like to see those | 17 A Well, there's a wall right at the top of the stairway.
o documems myself o if you could tell -« so we could get Ly ft's not a very big wall.
e vour attorney ta get them. Q0 Correct. Okay. So you get inside, see these two men
S0 A They would be filed 20 wleep. What do you do? 100 in the meming. what do
>1 Q@ Where? 21 you do?
22 A the cabinets, file cabincets in the police depanment..... 22 A What do 1 do?
A3 Okay. 23 Q Yeuh
oA or on dispatch cards. <4 A See two men asleep.
190 Allnght 7S Ifs warm. _
Froge 19 Fae
A And these have -- these have them on dispatch cards. 1 A Wel, the door's open, go check to see if any of the men
2 ) How many of those did you read? 2 can wake up. Soen as [ get clo -- approach them, trying
3 A Iread quite a bit. 3 to wake them up, can smell the alcohol coming from their
I How many do you think that you read of him? 4 breath.
A | don't remember. 5 Okay. Back up alittle bit. Now, are we agrecing that
© ) Did you remember that night? H the top had a board over it and may not be considered a
A1 remember some of them. not all of them. 7 door but it did have a board faying down on it that would
< 3 Tell me what vou remember. B -- Kept it warm in there? Do you agree with that?
¢ A lremember that he's been assaulitive towards police 9 A No,
i officers. uncooperative, 10 Q  You don't agree with that?
1) Butyou don't remember who, right? Il A No.
Lo A No 120 How is it so warm in there if it was so cold outside?
Q0 You don't remember how many, 13 A I'sa--it's atwo-story building. Al that heat stays
A Yes, B up. The stove was up to 90 samething Jdegrees.
< Allright. Soyou saw it on dispatch card or a police 25 Q) Okay. Soyou go inside, see the two men asleep. You
eport of sometning” foa ~ard that you smelled aleohol on their breath, 15 that
v Yes. ) reht?
1) AMlright. Okay. Sovou go in, vou ¢o npstaies and it's A Yes, when Tapproached.
! 4:00 0 the morning and the first thing vou wee 15 two Lo O Which one”
mien asfeep, 1s that right? F0 A Both,
v dnkind - difterent parts of the house, ves ! Lo Nime ume?!
£ Buti's just one hig rooim, correct! : <A N went and approached first and then |
!

;‘.\
o

Y es.

And so vou see tao men asieep in - on - one i couch, | )

one on the hed.

approached Hhomas,
O And what's Mr Oaks doing
A Mre Oaks iy following me.

TRAN!
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Ty V4 2 e
3 lust right hehind you! © A For his satety, our safety and the safety of everybody
G A Yes. A clse because we didn't want anybody to get -- 10 get hunt
T Okay Sodoyou watk over o and what dosou say? 1 or into a fight.
4 Piry waking imoup, sasing \ sowathe up. 4 Q  And sheuld that be on the tape?
T Okay. 3 A Nes.
A Wouldn't wake up. A Q Okay. Goon.
() And then what do vou do next? ! A And as we continue, he's starting to yell in the house,
oA And then | started shaking him and waking koo vp. then | R saying that we're trespassing and | tell him no, we're
4 Witk over to Bova, Y not trespassing, we were wld to come in and he continues
2 Ukay ' ;o that we're trespassing and that vou can get shot for
oA feall his name vut a few times. | shook -- it - trespassing. That's what he tells us.
S remember correctiy. | shook him too. 1.0 Q@ Okay.
~ Q) Uh-huh. 4 A Tad no. we're not trespassing,
A Didn't wake up right away. 11 Ailright. Now, you were talking about the handeutfs.
{5 Q  Albright. So then -- and then what do you do? oD Before you handcutfed him. .
oA Thenas -- as U'm walking away, he wakes up and | go up H A What Fwanted o do befure handeutfing him was tefl him
- to him and 1 talk to him and he's asking what we're doing L to stand up so | can do a quick field sobriety test on
) in the house and 1 told him that we're here for a welture [ him.
§E] check, make sure everybody who's at the house is okay. [ 19 Q .And what happened there?
20 And at that point. was everyone okay? 11 A That's when he started getting out of control,
<1 A Tdon't know how long the children were left alone with U Q Howse?
p two intoxicated people. [f you want to calf two 22 A He said | was (indiscernible - whispering) the way he's
B intoxicated people okay. no. it's not okay. a3 raising his boys, clenching his fists.
=4 From your viewpoint, what you could see. was anyone hurt? | 24 (3 Okay. And what did -- 5o after you get the handcuffs on
<> A bhe kids weren't hurt. Doors fefl wide open. s him, then does he sit back down”?
Page 1)
() It was wam. 1 A No, he stands up.
2 A Itwas hot. 2 Q Now, where do you call for backup along in there?
3 Q Sohot inside. The adults were asleep. For all you 3 A After trying to wake up " again.
9 know, the children -- some of the children were asleep 4 Q Okay. Sonow you have Thomas standing.
5 and you wake him up and he asked you what you're doing | 5 A Mm-hmm.
© here, is that right? o Q Is Dimitri Oaks by him?
7 A Yes. 7 A VYes,
8 Q And what -- and you said you were there for what? “ Q  And you walk over to J
2 A Todo a welfare check. YA Yes.
i0Q Okay. And? 10 Q  And you try to wake him up?
L1 A Just make sure everybody in the house was okay. i1 A VYes
12 Q  Allnght. And so what happens next”? | =2 0 Okay. And what happens?
L3 A Buya gets pretty combative and started just clenching his | 1.3 A Well, Thomas continues to come into the room where the
24 tists. What | do is | put the handcuffs on him and teil 1 14 kids, that newborn and were.
L3 him I'm putting on them -- him for his safety and our biw Q Butit'sone reom. You just said that.
ie safety and then..... ’ 14 A Tothe area of them.
<2 Lustwant to be sure we're recording. Maybe justspeak (1 0 Ohay.,
= apalittle bit. You hive areal light vewce, | just Co 4 Contindes his yelling, He's tething us that we're
want to be sure we're picking you up, [ ~caring his kids,
A Mm-hmm, . 0 Were you!
S0 Soafvou'd just stay - yaou know, hecause it vou were LA No,
. putting the handcutts on him == <av you were dore that () Ohkay.
! ‘ tor his salety S A Wewceren'tyelling. We were tikong nermally and told
SN Yo, I Fam - hie's the one that's donyg all the yelling and
oD Ohay, Goen J ! scaring his kids at that time that alf the kids were
e 0 B L S AR Sy Eoar e ve—ap o e Py A P EENEEPC R >0 g wov T
Do lAaes 14
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P ; [ T RV
crying. i Q  Somebody did, right”?
O Okay. 12 A His wite called - not his wife, his girlfriend.
¢ A And somewhcere in that time, | called for backup tohelp | 3 ) Okay. S0 somecne had called.
1 with the kids and escort the prisuner over 1o the police 1A Yes
' Jepartment. TQ Adlright. So .- well, you sad it's hard 1o find
o Miright. Again, | just want you to be sure -- taik up b someone at 4.00 in the morning
50 we can be sure we're getting you recorded because it's /A Yes and after..
< really light, Allright. And then -- so now, you're =0 What were you going to Jo with the kids after you
! walking over 1o R 3 arresred him”
A Yes. U A After we called - after | called tor a backup so we can
1o Allright. But now you're tefling me you were having T vet them over after we get both -- both Thomas and
N s conversation with 1 homas - 10 the house. while that one ofticer’s at the house, we'd
CoA Tean walk and tatk af the same time. ! have samebody else go to the house, stay with the hids
I ) Because it's such a --11's one room. L1 Who?
A Yes, 15 A The mother.
S8 Q  Allright. So you walk over to the area where s 6 Q Where was she?
[ and what do you do? YA She was ather mom's house.
“v A Startshaking him some more trying to wake him up, L% Why didn't you just go get her to start with?
i yelling otf his name. 19 A Because when you leave kids that young alone, it's a
- Q  And what does he do? ' Crime.
1 A Nothing. 21 Q  But why didn't you just go get the mother on the way over
<« Q  And then what happens? 27 there or tell whoever you were calling for backup have
<3 A Boyastarted yelling some more, got louder and louderand | 7 3 the mom to come over?
=4 some time afler -- somewhere after all -- during all the 29 A There's -~ there's -- it's -- it's very hard when you're
-5 yvelling.  wakes up because Boya here pets loud ! dealing with one person. one police officer with two
Fage 23 Pagee S
enough. 1 intoxicated people, one of them really aggressive and the
< Q Andis Simon here yet? 2 other one can be aggressive on that police ofticer. I's
i A No. 3 an ofticer safety issue.
- Q Okay. Goon. 4 Q Iwasn't asking you to leave one officer there.
> A And[asked himif okay and then ashed him if 5 A That's what you were just saying.
i he's been drinking. [ wouldn't recall what he said but | 6 Q  You called Simon to come over. is that right?
; could smell the alcohol coming from his breath and | 7 A Yes {did
3 remember putting on - handcuffs on him. 3 QO And you knew where the mother of the children were?
A On -2 9 A Yes.
A Yes, 10 Q  And as of this time, there's no crime being committed in
12 0O Okay. 11 the house. There's two intoxicated men in the house with
+20 A Atthat pointin time, 1 decided 1o arrest both “and 12 the children, is that right?
) Ihomas. P30 A Backup to help with the escont of the prisoner (o the
4 Q) Now, why were you arresting 7 { 14 police department.
+ A Because he was an mtoxicated adult inside the house ! 15 Q Okay. Let's back up again. Why.....
along with his brother. Thomas Ir A White - while one - while sne pohice vificer's - v af
O Sode voualwiss arest mtovicated adults! ’ 1 the huose and they get that one prisoner (o the police
A Yes Notalways, } <8 department, they -- they vet the cther prisoner coming
Q Could veu have sust removed the children from the home? ‘ L Pack to the police department. Ther that one officer )
; VoY feeuld have Jone that Pl that has the time can o pick up the parent, uther
| (O Why dhdn't e f' 1 parent, and bring them aver,
VoWl premy hard o find some people 400 in the 2 Q0 Okay, Tershack up, Albroht You have twa otficers
mornmg. Lo m the house,
0 Well his wife had just called though, righr? 24N Yes
AN Yes his “_iLt CJ“id.'. — [0 Youhave two drunk men in the house,
pees o
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Tage 26 b L=
A Yes. U Q  Allright. Sothen what happens next”
Q  You decide to arrest because he's just drunk. 2 A Okay. You're getling me vontused here. You're guing to
¥ A Uh-huh. Becduse what he was doing was ilegal too . 3 this. you're going to that and you're going back to this
Q) What? 1 and then after | explain what happened. you're telling me
A cand eannot keave children that very young -- that & to o back to that same spot to explain again and after
¢ age with a drunk -- drunk relatives, e explaining as clear as Teanand you're stll going back
CQ But sou could have ashed Otlicer Simon 1o stop by .ind get / to thut area.
the mom and send her home. A Right. Okay. Sodoyou need me to ask that guestion
T Towould hase gotten a lot worse than what it was, 9 sgan’?
Lo Q0 Howdo you know? 13 A iUs how you're asking the yuestion
oA lusthow it emds ap. 11 Q  What happens next?
T How doyou know? Lo What happens next s alter wakes up b= it
S0 Beeswse. inmy experience, that signi -- signiticant L3 remember correctly. | put the handeufts on him o detain
i other of the person that's being arrested tums on the 13 him and then he starts getting a -- homas gets afong
1 police oflicers, i worse and that's when | called tor backup.
0 Q  Okay. So-- hut here you thought that the significant 16 Q  Why did you ~hine your Nashiight on Boya, on Mr. Olson?”
o other had actually called you to go do a weltare check. L7 A Tosee it he was - see him wake up, Te was ina Jurk
L is that right? 18 area of the house.
i3 A It happens that way and the significant other can attack 19 Q  Well. Hhought it was just one room.
S the police ofiicers at the same time. [ his happened in 20 A The light was in this purt ot the room and he was farther
R my experience. 21 over here.
2 Q  Allright. So.needless to say, you were now arresting 22 Q Alright. Sonow you have *in hundeufls.
3 two men even thongh the children appear to be just fine. 23 A Mm-hmm,
—4 A They wouldnt be fine with two men passed out on 21 Q  Youhave Mr. Olson in handeulfs.
o tindiscernible). 5 A Yes.
Paje 27 Fage 19
Q  All of these criminal charges were dropped, is that 1 Q Mr Olson is yelling you say and then keep going. What
2 right? 2 do you do?
3 A Idon'tknow. 3 A Oh,Tcall for backup. Ican't remember how long it
4 Would it surprise you to learn that they were? 4 takes for Sergeant Simon to get (o the residence and as
5 A Yeah 5 they were trying to -- when they were rying to escont
A Were you ever called to testify? 6 Thomas out of the house, they got on -- right around the
7 A Not that { can recall. 7 trash bag and all of them fell.
7 Q Okay. Allright. So you're upstairs now. Youareover | B Q So you remember it as all three fell together?
9 with . Oaks is with Mr. Olson. What happens next? | 9 A Yes,
-0 A Okay. You need to be more clear of where you're going { 10 (3 And you saw that?
1l t0. 11 A Ilooked back and saw that they were falling down on the
L2 Q  Okay. [just-- | don't want to confuse you. | want to 12 floor.
i3 be very clear wath you and, backing up. my understanding { 13 QO So you don't know that it was the trash buag that caused
B was that you had just walked over to wake ' up..... 14 them to fall or what caused them to fall but you just saw
I A Mm-hmm. P them all -- all on the loor?
Lo Laid you were shaking him awake, f 1504 Yo,
A Attempting o, P10 Okay. Justwant to be sure, | just want to know what yon
20 Okay. And then you said that Boya, Mr. Olson... . g S,
e A Mmchm, ! 19 A Mmhmm,
CQ L velling, woke .- awoke s that correct? "5 Aright? Sothen you see the three of them on the
A Yeah, atter quite a - after awhile ot veltine i Hoar,
O Hadyon SO Mm-hmm.
A Lhe nally came to, 220 Where exactly do you rememher them being”?
2 Had you already called for backup at that peint” -1 v Tets see, where the trash bag was. the entrance, |
A Notthat | ean recall J 9 remember Corporal Si -~ Sergeant Simon right around the J
M IR AT ST
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Y trash bay. Boya and Otficer Oaks.
1 Okay.

<

A \s they were getting up, | remember Boya kicking at one
4 of them.

Soge 30
A Yes.

Toaga

1
[ 2 0 Okay. And then -- now, were you the supervisor of Mr.
F 3 Simon and Mr. Uaks?

o4 A T snibam their supervisor,

; Q  Okay. All nght. Sotell ine what happens when othcers
{

one,
T Dden't know which one he was kicking at but [
S ) Yousaw a drunk man kick.
\ but I do know they were taking kim cut kecame |

istructed them to tike him out,

L Okay. Tnote answer my question Y oo just saw 1 drunk
man Kok

Vo He was itovicated ot the time, yus.,

1 And you saw him kick?

L Which une? &
G A lean'tremember which one he was kicking at first, 5 2ot up.
€ Help me understand that. So you remember where they - A When the officers get up. Thomas tumns to one, staris
you remember seeing them fall. 4 hicking at him. As he - that position he was in, he
A Yes, 3 went back, turned around. started kicking at the other
Q  You remember <eeing him un the ground, 19 ~iicer. The -- Officer Oaks falls down and then he
A Yes. o turns back wnd starts kicking at Sergeant Simon.
< Q Youremember seeing all three of them on the ground. 12 Sergeant Simon falls down and. as Officer Oaks is trving
A Yes 13 to approach him again, Fhomas starts turning and
T4 You remember seeing them stand up. L4 somewhere in that time frame, | looked to -- lovked at
© A Pveseen all three of them on the ground more than once. 115 He locked Tike he was getting ready to kick at me
P00 Okay. You see them -- you're the first one to tell us Le 5o 1 asked him if he was going to kick at me several
s that today. Do you realize that? L7 times and he answered yes and that's when | tumed my
A Yes, Hdo. I3 attention to him,
-7 Okay. And then you see them - you see the two officers | 15 O So, generally, when people are going to kick at you, is
L stand up, 20 that hind of how it works, you just look over at them,
ST A Yes. 2 you say are you guing to kick me now and they say yes or
<< Q  Allright. And at that point, you see Thomas kick but 22 how does that usvally work?
z you don't know where or who? 23 A It was an obs -- observation | saw and 1 -- | asked him
-1 A Yes. 74 and he said yes and that's when I grabbed him. flipped
<7 Q  Sojustkind of a drunk man kicking? 2! him over to keep him from kicking at me.
b Fage 31 Faye 33
A Can you say that again? 8 LNKNOWN: Anybody's planning on leaving, the plane
2 Q  Well, it was just -- you know, | mean, you've seen drunk 2 should be here any minute.
3 men kick before, haven't you? 3 MR. BROWN: Okay. Al right.
I A I've seen intoxicated people kicking, yes. 4 UNKNOWN: Those are the iast flights.
% Qs that kind of what he was doing? 5 MR, BROWN: Thank you.
€A He was kicking his -- kicking at the officer so he 6 MR. WIDMER: Thank you.
' wouldn't take him out, 7 MR.BROWN: Thank you very much.
< Youdon't really know why he was kicking. do you? I'm 3 MROINGALDSON: {f vou want to hit the main ones. if
0 just asking you what you saw. 3 you want to, we can keep this open (oo If you want, you know.
FJ A Yes. 0 MR, BROWN: Okay. We'll see.
UL Q  Okay. What you observed, was it -- you observed a drunk | 11 O When have you ever said that the two officers fell -
L man kicking? . hath fell? Have you ever said that before today?
LY A Oh,1observed Thomas to be kicking at both Sergeant 14 A Did 1 say that they both fell?
- Simon and Corporal Oaks. <1 Q Yousaid they both fell twice. You saw them on the floor
YT Thisis different than what you just said which was you 15 more than once.
saw him kick at one of them but vou did not know which PEOA Ves T saw them on the foor mare than onge.

[f SO Have you ever said that hetore tday”?

PN Narthat | ean recall,

PO Gy, And hetore todav. vou wrote i palice ~cport. s
that right”

v ooYes bdid,

(0 Andanthat police report, von wrote d - seven pages ot
police report,

Pl A Ohay,

[ O Okay? And it looks tike you wrote maybe three with a

- "
g T T
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Fage 4 Fage o
cover also. You Jdo not mention that there. 1 up.
> A Mm-hmm. 2 A Mm-hmm.
1 Q) Doyouagree with that? 3 Q  Youagree? 15 a - you wrote this. This s your use
4 A No. 4 of toree report, right”?
S () letsseeit. Tell me when you're done. 5 A Yes
o] {Pause) fQ  thomas started kicking gt both Corporal Shimon and Ot cer
T A P'mdone. It's not in the police reports for me here and 7 Ouks. hickirg Corparal Simon on the chest of the right
? now, 4 thigh and in the lefl shin and Kicking Officer Oaks i
Y  Okay. That's cne human error. Aliright. Thep you did | 73 the ieft knee twive and continaed to Kick officers when
Lol an atTidavit to suppornt the..... 1 they couldi't get -- couldn't get wnat's that word?
11 A 1 didn't write the affidavit. 11 A Control.
Y20 Who wrate it” L@ eontrol of him, Ddeployed my taser and drive
13 A The agorneys Jdid. L2 stunned him with a what! Brent? Drive stunned him
i1  Ihdyou rea'd i’ [ L approximately five or six times. S0 you drive stun him
5 A Yes, Tdid, I'veread it . L9 five or sixctimes. This is in addition to the.....
L& Q) Did you think it was true? ’ le A tdidacycle five or six times and the drive stuaning
17 A Pvercad it over. P've got it tor instance, when 17 was. welll three or four tmes.
Lz this..... 18 @ Okay. But you put here you drive stunned him
S0 Okay. 13 approximately five or six times. Is that what you say. -
U A That's Gy drive stunned him five or six times?
21 Q Soyou had a chance to change it before you signed it? 21 A tdeployed my taser and | drove stunned him approximateh
Ze A Yes. 22 1ve or six imes. 1 was -- that's sort of in cveles.
23 Q@ Did you add in they are the (indiscemible)? 23 Q  Okay. Afler he calmed down. after that, many Jrive
24 (Pause) ) 2 stuns. [ Jeployed the taser because Thomas was a threat
o6 MR, INGALDSON: How're we looking, Sean? 25 with the floor being slippery and the trash the ofticers
FPage 35 P 34
MR. BROWN: Mm-hmm. 1 were slipping on. Is that right?
2 MR. INGALDSON: How are we looking? 2 A Yes
3 MR. BROWN: That too. 3 Q Okay. Sothose deployed -- you're doing five or six.....
4 A Well, I see in here that Officer Oaks was kicking 4 A Mm-hmm.
5 (indiscernible). not that (indiscernible). 5 Q ...theother officer's done about seven, we've heard.
& € Ohkay. And then in our use ot -- okay. So I'm going to € So it's about 13 times. Is that right?
7 mark that exhibit F and that is your affidavit of Nathan 7 A Notthat | recall.
H Joseph..... 8 Q Okay. You say you don't recall but you've got five or
3 A Mm-hmm. 9 six here.
1¢ Q .. which does not indicate anything about two people 10 A Yes.
11 following and an exhibit G which does not indicate 11 Q Okay. Simon just testified awhile ago. You were in the
1< anything which i5 -- well. G, which is the police report 1 12 room.
1.7 which does not indicate anything about anyone falling. T A Yes
Id A AMm-hmm, 11 € He did it with seven.
15 Andyou agree with that, correct, does not indicate i A Yes
' anvthing about two people falling down? 60 How many iy that? How many drive stuns is that. six plus
FooA Mim-hmm, ) 1 seven?
"R Abouteveryone talling twice, is that right? Do vou ! 7 A That's 13
j L aeree with that? 0 Thirteen, And then you st deploved the taser auam.
A Yes. i~ that neh?
o Okayv, Now. lets ook at your use of force here | AN

Officers went to Jo a weltare check, tound both Thomas
and to be passed out, detained hoth, When Thomas
was hehind., eseorred. Corporad Simon and Officer Oaks |7

Shift from - ship trom the trash with Thomas, They got | -

QI deployed the taser hecause Thomas was i threat.

A ifthats what rndiscerrible - whispering).
3 \lright. And on tep of all this, sometimes when vou
were deploving the taser, Thamas was over on his belly
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Ray. Officer Dimitri Oaks. Officer Charles Simon, Officer Nathan

D og# a2 e
with his hands behind his back. lsn't that correct”! +omoming. We'll call him and what Cme are sou on duty
A Yes. Sill struggling with the officers. 7 omorrow”
Vo And you think that's appropriate use of force? TOA Fgetinat 100 o'clock in the Jm-mm)‘rm ; v
3 A Yes, with him still struggling with the officers, ves. 4 MRUOINGALDSON: Mashe I‘L‘;m tindiscernible).
L Q  Onhis belly having been drive stunned repeated limes. i MROWIDMER: £H set something up. o
S A Notrepeated tmes. S A ARd - and have managenal duties sometime in the
Q Okay. Weil seven plus six! . afternoan oo, ‘
C A Ne a MRUNGALDSON: Yeah
FO Tlow many? K CUNRKNOWN: Just want 1o caif um?
‘; He was ‘11:i\c stunned at feast once or twce when he was - MR OBROWN: Yeah.
. . ‘ . 11 LNKNOWN: AL E:307
i o his belly. He was probably being drove stunned at the - MR, INGATDSON: We'll call and check the sehedule.
ST - (Wi gt the saime tme by NSergeant Simon ard - MR, BROUWN: You guys do notget 1o fease without me.
- myseit. , 4 MRUINGALDSON: Al right,
14 Q  Sauabout four tmes then? L VIR, BROWN: Hold on Yes.
oA When e was on his belly? L6 MR INGALDSON: We'll tell them to wait.
o Yes MRBROWN: Hold on just a second. No. o, na. vou
I Nootwace, F17 hold on,
TR Yousaid twice by you and twice by Simon, iR MROINGALDSON: We'll make sure they wait.
I MR. BROWN: Thar's the plane, isn't it”? LA (OFF record)
< v Heonly had.... Sy
Sl MR INGALDSON: Haun? pa|
s MR. BROWN: That's the airplane. Al right. i
23 MR. INGALDSON: ! think it's (indiscernible - 23
24 simuhtaneous speaking). 24
o5 MR. BROWN- How ure we going to wrap this up though? | 25
Page 39 Fage d;
Q I mean, obviously. I've got to get to this..... 1 RANSCRIBER'S CERTIFICATE
2 MR. WIDMER: Well..... 2 I Vinda S. Foley, hereby certity that the foregoing
3 MR. BROWN: ... .because I think it -- vou know, let 3 pages numbered 2 through 40 are a true, accurate, and complete
4 me tum this off real..... 4 transcript of videotaped deposition of Nathan Joseph (Vol. I
5 MRUINGALDSON: It's - it was... 5 in Case No JBE-7-00026 CL. Thomas J. Otson v. City of Hovper
t

A MR. BROWN: Well.....

B MR.INGALDSON: Some of it's getting a little Joseph. transcribed by e from a copy of the electronic sound
3 argumentative now and we could count the times that it's.. . ¢ recording to the best of my knowledge and ability.

a MR. BROWN: Tthink it's getting argumentative 3
10 because I'm in a hurry, to be quite honest with you,and fcan | 10 May 20, 2008 e
11 see that happening. 1 just need..... i1 Linda S. Foley, Transcriber
R MR.INGALDSON: But if you want to finish it, | e
1} mean, we can do the rest by phone probably, don't you..... !
N MR BROWN: We could do that in the moming if you | 14
1L wantto do that. Sl
S0 Canyouhe by 4 phone in the morning? ; o

!

A Itdepends on what time it is.

-7 What ime's goud tor you? N
L T don't know, ’ AR
- QO Youdon'tknow g ot of stuff, Tell me whit would work 1.

|
i

N HOF vou, .
MROWIDMER: Why don't we just continue the - st }
~oswhy don't we just centinue with (indiscerible -
I 4 simultsneous speaking) and then we will figure it out, [
Pl MROINGALDSON: Okay. Let's just cait in the [ -
o R L A cL
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Hooper Bay

IBE-07-26 CI

Oison v.
Jaae 4 & Page i
; IN THE SUPERIOR COURT FOR THE STATE OF AL ASKA 1 INDEX
C FOURTHUDICEAL DISTRICT AT BE FHEL 2
1 THOMAS ) OLSON, ) 3
3 ) 4 EXAMINATION BY: PAGE(s)
PlaintiT, ) 5
! ) ) Mr. Brown 16
v. ! 7
B ) 8 NMr. Widmer 5l
POCHY OF HOOPER BAY, ) 9
L3 OFCICER DIMITREOAKS, ) 10 EXHIBITS: IDENTIFIED
L1 OFFICER CHARLES SIMON and j 11
Lo OFFICTR NATHAN JOSEPH, ) 12 9 - Document 16
L ) 13
L d Defendants. ) 14
| 15
- 16
L7 No. ABE-07-00026 (1 17
] 18
P ELEPHONIC DFPOSITION OF NATHAN JOSEPH 19
) 20
1 taken on behalf of the Plaintiff. pursuant (o notice. ut the 21
22 offices of Power and Brown, LLC. 460 Ridgecrest Drive. 22
*3 Swuite 113, Bethel, Alaska. before Sean E. Brown, a Notary 2
Z1 Public for the State of Aldaska. 24
2D 25
Page 43 Page 1%
APPEARANCES 1 Bethel, Alaska. May 15, 2008
2 2
3 For the Plaintiff: 3 MR. BROWN: Okay. Are you actually talking into the
4 SEAN E. BROWN 4 phone or are you talking into a spcaker phone?
5 POWER & BROWN, LLC 5 MR, JOSEPH: Speaking into the phone.
5 Box 1809 6 MR. BROWN: Okay. ! just need vou to speak up. |
7 Bethel, Alaska 99559 7 can hear Bill really well but you are not coming through very
3 (907) 54 3-4700 8 well so I need you to speak up. Okuy?
9 9 MR. JOSEPH: Okay.
10 For the Defendants: 19 MR. BROWN: Okay. That's much better so if you
L1 ' 11 could just talk like that. that would be great. We are
12 MATTHEW WIDMER 12 recording this here in our office at Power and Brown and we
13 ANGSTMAN LAW OFFICE 13 will proceed forward. If we could start, Sergeant Joseph, the
24 Box 585 L4 Jast time that you and | were together there sn Hooper Bay. |
i) Bethel, Alaska 99559 I'TS putyouunder oath. 1f you could just raise your right hand
F (907) 8432972 Caand wedl pat vou under vath again
L . MR OJOSEPH: Okay.
L3 WILLIAM HOINGATDSON (telephonically) | 1% 10ath administered)
= INGAFDSON. MAASSEN & FITZGERALD, PC | 1 MR.IOSEPH: Yes.
.. $13 West Third Avenue MR BROWN: You may putsoor ] Jown, If cach
.! Ancherage, Alaska 9901 f conerteipant could el their marre? M name s Sean Brown and
|- (907 238-8750 Fantrepresenting the placit] in s roatter. Thomis Obson,
_— | MROWIDMER My name is Matthew Widmer  Mmnowith
i ; 4 Angstman Law OtFice and represent Sergeant Joseph and Serzeant
“ o Simon s well as Officer Oaks in this matter,

E
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Olson v.

Hocper Bay

Su o on, where did vou deploy 1t trom?
A Bdeployed from standing by his brother. | was living on |
the ground. He had others -- other officers. ‘
) Were you standing or sitting? L
A Twas standing, ’
{

CE i calls forepert estimony . Todon't know My loseph

oamilar cnomeh with the way - Fdonthisow [ he's
Doaualitied dx an epert o taser operation.
0 Dustsay ifvouknow. You can stili answer, Me, boseph
Do veu hnow whether i1 just one prove goes 01, does 1

<1 Arthe ume you deployed the taser, were all three I shock the person fully or nop!?
w!fm:rs standing” J A With ene prong inside. it doesn't eive 4 full cffect.
ages A6 ot i
TEANGCRIPTION SUPPORT AFERVICES ~ - May 15, 7on04
Exc.123

Tage do Py DA
. MR.INGALDSON: And Bill Ingaldson on behalfof | 1 A Ouks was just standing up.
2 Hooper Bay. 2 Q  Atthe time you deployed the taser, were all three
3 MR. BROWN: Okay. 3 vlicers standing”?
4 4 A Two ufus were standing, one was standing up.
S NATHAN JOSEPH 5 Q) Sothatis yes, all three were standing then when these
& called as a witness herein on behalf of the b were heing duployed? '
7 Plaintit, having been duly sworn upon oath A fuwas deployed when one of the otticers was standing up
2 by Mr. Sean E. Brown, Notary Public, was 8 from the floor,
4 examined and testitied as tollows: 90 Okay. So waltkome through this now, Ouks dJid et o
1o N during his deposition that he felt once and he said that
Tl EXAMINATION CONTINUED Li he got right back up. So your testinony today s that
L2 BY MR BROWN: 2z vou started deploying the efficer -- you just started
T3 And. Sergeant Joseph. ¥'m talking loud just se you can . Jeploving the drive stun right aiter the otticers tell,
14 hear me. If I'm tatking wo loud, please tell me and if 14 I's that vour statement today?
| I'm not talking loud cnough, pleasc tell me and | will -2 A Ddeployed - 1 deployed the cartridge, not the drive
L6 try to adjust that as well. Okay? L6 stun.
17 A Yes. 17 Q  Okay. Youdeployed the actu - rou deployed the what?
PR All right. Sergeant Joseph, do you have in frontof you | 18 A The actual cartridge.
L9 your use of force report? 19 Q  Okay. Yuudeployed the actual cartridge first?
29 A Yes, | have it 20 0A Yes. Yo
21 Q Okay. ifyou could take a fook at that, I'm going to 27 Q Okay. And when you deploy the actual cartridge, is that
22 mark that as deposition exhibit -- I believe that it's 22 what has the prongs on it? Is that what you're 1alking
23 exhibit 9. Knowing that all of these are running 23 about?
a4 together, | believe this is exhibit 9 and if vou could 24 A Yes, that's the one with the.....
i take a look at that exhibit, did you complete this 25 Q  How many cartridge -- how many cartridges do vou have on
Page 47 Fage 40
A document or who completed this document? 1 unie taser?
< A Isuppose 1did, 2 A One
3 Q  And when did you complete this document? 3 Q  And when you deployed that taser on Thomas Qlson. id vou
¢ A On the day the incident happened. 4 think it made contact ur did not make contuct?
2 Q  And how many times does this document indicate that you | & A It wasn't being -- the {irst deployment wasn't effective.
" drove stunned Thomas Olson? 3 I'then ran a second cycle. | ~aw that -- that wasn't
A Itsays several tines. 7 cffective so [ had to go up and make a second contact
s () Was that five or six? 2 with him.
4 A That--yes, 9 And when you say it wasn't cffective. was that becuuse
' Q Okay. And during this time, you had actally walked over | 10 onc of the prongs did not stick in him so it did not make
il to where Thomas was on the - sitting on the floor or 11 a complete circuit? Is that veur understanding or why
1 were you doing it from the position where you were with 1z was -- why do you think it was not cffective?
: his brother? 13 A Because it -- the - it Jidn't muke any contact with the
i A ldeployed from the -- where [ was with the brother but | 14 -~ with him.
that didn't work. He stood up. Hello? | 15 Q Soitonly one prong goes in. then the individuaf --
~ 0 Yup. We're here I'm just going to hit the nute. | cin o there's no cirenit o the indin idual doesnt feel the
Jon'thnow i 1 help you come through betrer or what, Pl il hack s that correct?
There may be feedback but you need 1o speak up. Okay. ‘ T MRWIDMER: ' going o obsect 1o that, | think

fBe18a35-0346-48b1-bdd847¢59011550f
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1 Q  Okay. Soatter vou tried to do two drive stun -- or two i testimony
. - cartridges. then sou go back and you Jo the - is that 2 A Yes . '
5 when you approach and you start drive stunning him? 1 Q  And you were responsibie -« vou were Jealing with - |
4 A The first gun that - | could not Jeploy two cartridges B! helieve his name was at that time, is that
g o Bdeploved ore. 1 made two cyeles. Alter the second o) correct!
" cycle was't working. | walked up to the suspect and 6 A Yes
' sturted doing the drive stun. ! Q  Did you ever deploy a cartridge or attempt to drive stun
= Okay. You sas that sou deployed - vou oyeled twice H ! that night”!
T Help me understard what that means. et me 9 A N
SOA s when -- s when vou et it acle some -- for about Lo Q  And could you tel! -- say why sou did not do any of those
DL four of tive seconds. il things to a7
-2 And you Jo that with -- and the cycle is done with the 12 A Thad - reason Dwanted.
. brnefit of the prongs bemg -- after the prongs are T2 Q  I'mosorry, could you repeat that one more time. Sergeant
2 deployed. is that correct? 14 Joseph!
oA Yes. 1% A Ihad him in the position | wanted him where he wouldn't
TE O Q  And so it has nothing to do withdrive stunning, The 16 be kicking at me or any other oiticer.
i cycle has nothing 1o do with drive stunning. is that 1/ Q Okay. 1don't think | have any more questions for you at
Tr right? 18 this time, Sergeant Joseph. Thank you.
159 A Yes. 19 MRUINGALDSON: | don't have any questions.  Phanks,
< Okay. Sothen when you went and you drove stun him. you | 29 MR BROWN: Okay. We'll just wrap this up now,
21 dJid that approximately five or sixtimes, that was atter Z1 “Thank you.
s the two cycles. is that correct? 22 MR. WIDMER: Thank you. Sergeant Joseph,
23 A The drive stuns were done afterthe cycle. 23 A Thank you,
74 Q  And | believe the last Lime that we talked. you said some 21 tOft record)
_h of those drive «tuns were done while he was down on his b
Fage 51 Fage 53
stomach with a -- and they were done on his back, is that 1 IRANSCRIBER'S CT'RTIFICATE
2 correct”? 2 1, Linda 8. Foley, hereby certify that the foregoing
3 A At least one of my drive..... 3 pages numbered 2 through 52 are a true, accurate, and complete
4 Q  Did you say at least one was or what Jid you say? Did 4 transcript of deposition of Nathan Joseph in Case No. 4BE-07-
eaw YOU Say at feast one was or what did you say? 5 00026 C1. Thomas J. Olson v. City of Hooper Bay, Officer
€ A | had at least one drive stun when he was down on his & Dimitri Oaks, Otficer Charles Simon, Officer Nathan Joseph.
©_ o omach and that was the last one. That..... 7 transcribed by me from a copy of the clectronic sound
20 And is it possible that there was more than one? 5 recording to the best of my know ledge and ability.
7 A Yes, it's possible that there was more than one, 9
Lc Sergeant Simon may have a -- been doing a drive stun at 10 NMay 21, 2008 o e
11 the same time, 11 linda §. l*o!e» Transeriber
"o While he was dowi on his stomach, is that right? 12
A Yes, 13
: ri) Okay. 'have nothing further. We're just going to wrap 14
up here. This won't go as long just because, yvou know, !
' we're on the phere but well just wind of wrap up. Mr. o
Wodner and Mr e galdson mighthave some - miy have some | 27
questions as weli oA
: )
PNAMINATION
BY MROWIDAHT ’
O M Joseph L Serseant Joseph, T go it A s
understanding i~ that we beard testimans that Oieer ’
Craks and Sereeant Nimon, they were struggling with Thomas
Olson dJuring this raner. Do youremember lhat K
LBt ey g4 o Bl -~ gy Centl 2 Lo -t A = I LTON
e R I

RIS RS

May 15,
Be18235.0346-48b1-bdd847c59011550f

124

T3 =4

PR

[T

-kt

—_— _

[P



4BE-07-26 |

Oison v. Hooper Bay

]
]
1 -
]
b
)

Fage S

S B A

—,

3 1
| I

,,,,
o

e

TrT—— Tz —rr
n T —— L4 D o ey - | e g~ ey 0
- r- L
— b o

TEANSCRIPTION SUPPCORT SRRVICES May 15, Z4r2
+ 7 [ SR A

EX C. ]_ 2 5 fBe18a35-0346-48b1-bddB-47¢59011550f




IN THE SUPERIOR COURT FOR THE STATE OF ALASKA

FOURTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT AT BETHEL

THOMAS J. OLSON,

Plaintiff,
vs.

)

)

)

)

)

CITY OF HOOPER BAY, )
OFFICER DIMITRI OAKS, )
OFFICER CHARLES SIMON, and )
OFFICER NATHAN JOSEPH, )
)

)

)

Defendants.
Case No. 4BE-07-26 CI

PLAINTIFF'S OPPOSITION TO MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT

Exhibit 4

Exc.l26
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Olson v. looper BRay

4BE-07-00026 CI

(O0T) 2588750

MROBROWN: Okgy, " Funk vou,
MRONGALDSON: B Ingaldsen representing the (i

roage Ul 37
" IN THF SUPFRIOR COURT FOR THE STATE OF AF ASKA ! INDEX
L) FOURIH T DICTAL DISTRICT AT RETHEFL 2
© o THOMAS L OF SON, ) 3
“ ) S FXAMINATION BY: PAGE(s)
PlaimtY. ) o
! & Mr. Brown 6.04
AS H 5
b A M. Widmer 60
CHEY OF HOUPER BAY, ) 3
k OFFICFR DIMITRI OAKRS. 1 N Mr. Ingaldson 63,75
Zo OFHICER CHARLES SIMON and ) 1]
TOOFFICER NATHAN JOSEPH, ) L7 ENHIBITS: IDENTIFIED
) Pz
H Detendants. ) ! A - Silence is Golden 35
' ) 18
- Lo B - Training manual, F'he Common Effects of EMD 52
No. ABE-07-00026 ] 17
e 1d C - Hooper Bay Police Department Use of Force 57
3 VIDEOTAPED DEPOSITION OF DIMITRI O AKS T
o 20
‘i 21
<& aaken on behalf of the Plaintiff, pursuant to notice. at the 22
23 Sea Lion Corporation Boardroom. Hooper Bay. Alaska. before 23
- Sean E. Brown, a Notary Public for the State of Alaska. 24
= 55
Page 3 Paja b
APPEARANCES 1 Hooper Bay, Aluska, April 23, 2008
>
3 For the Plaintiff: 3 MR. BROWN: My name is Scan Brown and | am the
4 SEANE. BROWN S attorney representing Thomas (Mson in this matter but I'm also
K POWER & BROWN, LLC 5 anutary for the State of Alaska and the tirst thing we want
~ Box 1809 b 10 do is to swear you in and then we'll go around and intro -
7 Bethel, Alaska Y9359 7 letevervone introduce themself. Okay?
g (907) 543-4700 3 MR. OAKS: Ycah.
3 9 MR. BROWN: If you could raise your right hand and
1O For the Defendants: 13 if you could state your name?
11 11 MR, OAKS: Dimitri Oaks.
oo MATTHFW WIDMER 12 MR.BROWN: Dimitri Oaks. ...
L3 ANGSTMAN LAW OFFICE L (Oath administered)
Ld Box 588 -4 VRO OAKS: Yes.
Lo Bethel, Alaska 99539 5 MR BROWN: Okay. Thank you. Introduce yoursel!,
(YOT) 5432972 e MRUOWIDMER: My namie iy Matthew Widimer, o e
. [ L7 Angstman Law Office, We represent Otticer Oaks in this
A W LIAM HOINGALDSON ! Deomater. We also represent OfTicers - Csrporal Simons and
INGALDSON MAASSEN & FITZGERALD, PC 110 Sereeant Jaweph,
. §1 3 West Third Avenue ,’ OFFICER SIMON: I'm Serzeant Charles Simon, s
. Anchorage. Afaska 9950 : cerpor
|

ot Hooper Bay.
SERGEANT: 'macsergcartin HPD. sir,

TRANSCRIPTTION
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Glson v. Hoorer Bay
e [
MROBROWN: (hank you. toA InKing Salmon
MR OOESON I'm Thomas § Olson, Senior. 4 And what -~ tell me a iittle bit about that. What does
MROBROWND And my name (s Sean Brown. | already b that mean”!
1 intreduced myselt and | represent Themas Olson. 4 A Oh, you mean the police academy?
2 Q Yeah
DINMITRI OAKS 6 A Well. let's see, the police academy, they teach you huw
called as a witness berein on behalf of the i o == how o arrest people without trying to hurt them
Plamtit? having Been duly sworn upon oath H and how o do paper work and they teach you hbow -- how 1o
ny M. Sean b Brown, Notary Public, was I make them policemmen to where you can -- that'tl help you
t';:m\incd and testitied as follows: 14 alony the way when you make an arrest so you don't hurt
11 -- hunt - pet hurt or an -~ hurt any body.
E FXANMINATION L2 Q  How many days was that camp?
Lt BY MR BROWN: L3A lowas two weeks.
Q0 M Oaks, could you tell me how old you are? 14 Q Okay. And{calleditacamp. Wasita--isita
A Uh, 38, re normal course that they have or what?
0 Filty-eight? [low long have you lived here in Hooper Bay? | 16 A Thave it all right here. That's -- all | know is that's
Po A Ob, about 36 years, 17 where they were -- the police academy was.
3 Q) Where were you from before that? 12 Q  How many yeurs ago was that?
SN Bristol Bay. 13 A Ohosomething like six to eight years ago, sumething like
< Q Al right. What brought you to Hooper Bay?) A0 that.
LA Oh.my wife. We moved here. 21 Q  And Jid you get any training on the taser use then?
Al right. Were you a police officer down in Bristol Bay 22 A Yes,
23 area or..... 23 Q  Allright. And are you centified to use a tuser
-4 No. 24 yourselt?
15 Where'd sou live down in Bristol Bay” 25 A Yes,sir.
Page 7 Page )
¢ ) A Igiugig, : I Q Okay. Soabout six or cight years ago is when you
7 Q  Okay. And your wite was originally from here in Hooper? 2 received training on the taser?
3 A Yes. sin 3 A No. No.
4 Q  Allright. And then when you moved up to Hooper Bay. how 4 QI mean, at that police academy. did you then receive
i ~oon ater that did you become a police officer? 5 training on the taser?
oA Somewhere in Y6 ] think, 1996. £ A Notthat | recall. We....
© Q) What led to that decision? 7 Q) Were they just -~ they may not have been used then. |
& A Wehave VPSO Clinton (YMallcy here and | used 1o rent out H don't know. Do vou remember?
4 videos and he used to come and rent videos and he came 3 A ldon't think they were being used.
L vver and kept constantly asking me to become a police 10 Q  Yeah | -- that's probably right. So back then when vou
- othicer because e was -- we became verv good friends and i took that police training. what tx pe of techniques Jid
he was -~ it got - it got to the point where he was 2 they tell you to use to restrain someone who is -- who
L being stuch in the jutl almost 24 hours a day. 13 was kicking?
i And so did vou tinally give in to that or..... 1A Someone who was kicking?
A Yeaho Welll ook me shout three, four weeks and | 150 Yup
- fGoally wave oo ST el we were tught o use force it we have to and to
< AMEeghn And se when vou become an otticer. what do - tase them il we thought our Tves were in danger.
sowdfrve o do? 74 0 Ohav. But now, if sour life was n Janger but, | mean.
U Ohnsaer calisand ot and Vo pareols and aarck ; 3 fets huck up adittle bithere and talk about even
trattic. I before the sers were used. ~ack when you went 1o the
0 Do souhave oo throneh ey faipipe”? ; wademy or back when vouwent o the pelive academy .t

Vo Hack whier Fioaad. there was ne Iranmmng.

Prancecks of trainmy that sou bad

QO Oy Have vou - e then, hine vew had dm traneg ) P e
sV Yesosin Twentaa police deademy Pt Okay News Rack then. Yo sdid that Lisers weren't ased.
QO Where was that! f cht?
e N i I VU

PR SvRaET s T oy T
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4BRE-07-00026 CI

Olson v. Hoocper Bay
Tage L Fage 11§
A Yes, . shouiders and pull them up? !
Q  And so bow didd they show you baa then 1o restrain 2 A Yeah, we -- we could have did that but he was just 3
4 people’? 3 kicking su much.
f A How o use moves where you can ptomebods down on the 4 Q But. just in general. could -- is that sumething that you
wround without hunting them. 5 could do s g technique?
o Q And that -- 1 ust want to well you tfuts pretty oA Yes.
sensitive so dortt. 70 Okay. And --all righte So then == 50 you went to the
A Okay. Thank you, H academy. you got some training there and how many hours a
o You know. 1 just Jon'twant you tetwak Vlearn anything B week did you start working as an ofticer after that”
back-handediy. 90 A Well we was working cight hours a day tor thve, you
. v\ Oh thunk sou il know. days.
T2 Adbughtt Okay. 1ost wanted to t Thim that that L2 Q  And how soon after -- what other training have you
L microphone is sensitive there. 3 received then?
= MR, INGALDSON: Oh. okay . 14 A Dwentto - [ think [ went to domestic violence training
2 Sohback - you used the hand. Wikt would you do now? - und EMT training. that's ubout it. Most of the young -
e How would you de..... 6 mo «- mostly the young people were going 10 the
L7 Oh,usually. we take the hand and- e amm and put it 1/ trainings.
: up behind their back and way it behnd their back and put 130 Okay. Now, vou also mentioned to me that you had tken
s a hule foree on it where they'll feel- feel alittle 11 some taser training. Who gave that w you?
o puain and -- pain and they'll comply eyd give vou their 20 A Chiet Hoelscher. le's our instruct -- he was the
name., 21 instructor for that.
S Q Okay. And what about somebodyir handeufts. what did 272 Q  And he's stil] the chiet here. is that right?
- they tcach you to do in the acadeengt hen? 23 A Yes, sir
<4 A What do you mean by that? "4 Okay. Did he do all of the training for that?
"T QI you had somebody in handcu t1vbhat was resisting, what 2% A Yes.
Fage 11 Faje .3
did they teach you to do? > Q  And do you know what type of qualifications he had to do
2 A Well, they taught us to try to talt them into standing up 2 that training, by any chance?
3 and not to be so aggressive and ttcome along peacefully 3 A No.Ihave not here. | think he -- | -- [ don't know. he
4 without -- and how to talk them it -- talk them into not 1 went to a lot of trainings. 1 don't -- so | wouldn't
doing anything anymore. to -- sofwey wouldn't have any 5 Know,
B more charges on them or -- chargs on them. £ Did he ever travel or did you ever travel out of Hooper
) Ohkay. Now --and if that didnttwork, what were you / Bay to go meet with anyone eise for any taser training?
taught to do in the academy? 83 A No.
A Well usually, we'd just try 1o strad them up..... 3 Q Now, when you took that taser training. you told me
o Okay. 10 carlier that you were supposed to use it when your life
A and try to -~ try to tell -- mak them walk to the 11 is in danger.
. snow machine or Honda. whicheer we're using. L2 A Oranother life is in danger.
L1 Now, onthe police report, | sawthat -- | believe it was 13 Q  Oranother life is in danger. Okay.
i Otficer Joseph, he -- actually, . he laid down on T4 A Orif we thought we needed it -- needed to use it.
K him and held his fegs. Have youeard of that happening 15 0 Now. what do vou mean by that?
hetore? [I7 A Gh dike somebody was hick g - kicking - Kicking both
Vo Ohoyes. ; i’ of the otticers and wouldn't stop Kicking and -- or
© QO Miright IS that one way to kew wmeone trom Kicking” | Bitting -~ hitting some -- like sit - some siluations,
v v that's one way to heep then fom icking, f L +ugetwhere they're head-butting us and... .
€ Okay  And <ot sou had a peranrestrained or the {loor ‘ L Ok, Soany time that - what sou were ‘aght then b
t
j

i handeutts and there were tw o f Ticers, is it !

reasonable to thick that you couk grab the officer's
fachetand -~ or grab the - I'm sy, grab the L

Chiel Hoe eher was any tme that vea were getting kiched
erhead-batted or hit S okas o Liser someone., s

that cormect”

[ - defendant’s jacket and puti thern. 3 off the ground or . MIRCWIDMER. Pm going toobject 1y that. | think

" their clothing or their -- just grabhem by their = that's a mischaracterization. You may answer. You can answ er

f:) Povages v s
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4BE-07-00026 CI

Dlsen v. Hooper Bay
REON ! Sl
the question. 1 Q Canyou idemify which sergeant knocked?
A What's that? <A Sergeant Nathan Joseph.
Q@ Okay. Did Officer Hoelscher tell you it was okay to use 3 Q Okay.
the taser when you were hit? 1 A So we went in and Thomas was passed out on one bed and
voNo ‘ " 1 was passed out on another bed.
) Okay. When did he -- ohay. Regarding just the hitting, 6 ¢ What ime of day was it?
when is it ohay to use a taser when you were being hit? T A Sortti--ti -~ tightin the evening. | don't remember
A When - when -- @ fot - [ think |recalt Twas told not 3 what time it was but it was toward the evening,
1o use the taser when they're handeuffed unless they were 3 Q  Allright. Goon.
doing something 1o harm the -- the officers. L0 A Okay. We entered the building, as I was telling you
Q) Aand what do you mean by harm? 1 They were both passed out. There were hids. Some of
A Well like i they were kick.ng or head-hutting or we pet i them were awake and some of them were steeping on the
a lot of them that bite -- hite peaple too. B bed.
) Now, did you receive from the -- from Chief Hoclscher, L4 )  Allright. Let's back up a linie bit, Now, you »aid it
did you receive the Hooper Bay Police Department general | 15 was in the evening when you got there. Right?
order for the use of force? 1 guess you're familiar with 16 A Nm-hmm.
that as an officer, 15 that right? U7 Q0 Allright. Firstofall, let's start, s0 if it was 12:00
A Yes,sir Yes. Le o'clock in the afterncon when you went to someone’s house
Q) Can you tell me the five times -- the five restricted 14 and you found the people passed out or laying on the
uses of the taser? 24 couch and on the bed asicep and the kids were still
A T'he what? 21 there, you may assume that they're passed out, is that’ 3
Q  The five restricted uses of the advanced taser. It's 22 right, or taking a nap?
part of your general order, 23 A Well, we try to wake them up first.
A No. <4 Okay. And if you went at 5:00 o'clock in the afernoon
Q  Okay. a5 and you saw a person on a couch and on a bed, what would
Fage 18 Page 17
A 1= T was wondering how come am -- am | being asked all 1 you think?
these questions when | never had a taser and | never 2 A Well depends on if they were having fumes of alcohol in
tased anybody. 3 there because a lot of times there's -- you can smell
Q  Because you're un officer und you've been an..... 4 alcohol if they had been drinking when you go in and some
A Yeah. Oh okay. 5 places you don't go in.
€ lusually don't have 1o answer the questions here but you 6 Q Okay. Andif it was 10:00 o'clock at night, the same
dre an ollicer and you were there and Fm just wanting to 7 thing?
find out what you've been taught..... R A Yup.
A Ohookay, 9 Q  2:00 in the moming?
DRI § R kind of get un idea of what the hase Tevel is. Now, L0 A Yes.
i you say in your - | have 1 Jocument here labeled the 11 O Yeswhat?
affidavit of Dimitri Oaks. 12 A What was that again?
-v Yes, 13 Q Okay.
i Did you write that? “4 A Because ) just woke up here not too long ago.
A Nuo. 15 Q Allright. If you walked into a house and found someone
O Have rou mend s Py ay.ng ona bed and oo couch st 1000 4t night, would
A Yo . veu pust agtomatically assume they were passed out?
0 Inthat - actaaiiy, et's just do this, so thut mght. ST Ohgnos we'd attempt to wake them up, see if they were --

\

elbme swhat Sappered when sou Brstarrived ot oy

resudence
Secwhat happened when we st arived Okay W --

whenowe Birstarrned, T T observed a -- the arotic

catny and the inside Joors were open and the serecant |
Lo
5

knoecked on the doorand we kept knocking on he foor, We

Jidn't get no answers i

4

0 Ohay. Andaf it was £00 in tie monming and tao people

A

th they had been drinking or not,

were Laying on the couch, weald you assume that they're
passed cut or would vou think they 're asleep”?
O, we'd wake them up and find ot if they Fad heen

drinking. no.

Q _Uhkay. Would it surprise you to feam that this was
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Olson v. Hcoper Bay 4BE-07-00026 CI

Jaue 1B Fane 00
actually $:00 in the moming and not in the evening? i of cold because someone had left both of the -- all the ]
v Yes 2 doors open and it was cold cut.
3 QO Okay. Allright. So at 1:00 in the moming, you go up 30 Okay.
4 1o the door and what do you find? 4 A Iuwas getting kind of chilly in there, getting kind of 1
S A Oh, that Thomas was passed out on one bed and was | 5 cold in there.
& out -- passed out vn another bed. 6 Q 1think you said it was reezing cut maybe in your
"0 Ukay. Well now, it's - first of all though, you have 7 atfidavit, is that nght? Well, maybe it wasn't you,
P to get upstairs. What do you Jo to get upstairs? 3 maybe someone clse. Cold out so 1t was cold inside? {
+ A Walkup 3 A Yes, sir
S0 Just walk right up.. 10 Q  Allright. Would it surprise you to leam that OtYicer
A there's -- there's steps going right up. 1 Joseph said it was very hot inside?
) Okday. Did you knock on the door? L A Mmm. Okay.
C* A Sergeant did. 13 Q  Would that surprise you to lcarn that?
T1Q  Okay. Was the door tocked? 14 A It would '
- A Nope, it was wide open. 15 Q Do you think he was telling the truth? What would be
") Okay. Which door was open? 16 vour opinion of that?
L A Both of them. out -- outside door and the inside door, 17 A Oh, he could be.
iR they were both wide open. 18 Q Okay. So your opinion is that he was telling the truth
S Q Okay. So the first two doors you came to were open. is 19 ur not. in your opinion?
o that right? 20 A Oh, in my opinion, he was telling the truth probably.
1A Yes. Yes. 21 Q Soitwas probably very hot inside?
“< Q  And then you went upstairs? 22 A Yeah,
<3 A Yes, or back -- there's only two doors, the door you go 23 Q Now, very cold outside. You said the doors were open.
LA in, the arctic entry door and then one -- one duor or -- 24 A Yup, all the doors were open.
b yeah, actually, there was three and then you go in, 25 Q And it wouldn't make much sense that it'd be very hot
tage 19 Page J14
. there's another door and then steps leading up to the 1 inside then, would it, if the doors were al} open? :
; Z arctic entry and then there's a flip-over door that's 2 A Obh no. A
3 closed. 3 Q Wouldn't make any sense, would it?
1 Q I've been there so..... 4 A No.
A Yeah S Q  Allright. Make more sense if maybe one or two of the
©Q Okay. But thank you for sharing. So the first two doors € doors were closed or the story?
are open so then you go up the steps. is that right? 7 A Yes.
7 A Ye-- yeah. and that -- that one was open also. 8 Q And that's how it would get hot inside?
‘ 4 Okay. Now, what was the first thing you noticed whenyou | 9 A Yes.
| b went inside? L0 Q Allright. So you go inside into what Officer Joseph
: LA Oh. that all the Kids were slecping and except for a 11 tells us is a warm residence. It's 4:00 in the momning.
o couple ol boys were -- [ guess they might have gotten 12 You see two men asleep. You've woken the kids up by
b woken up when we were going in the residence. | don't 13 knocking on the door.
o4 know, really. 14 A Notall the kids, some of them.
= Lights on or off? 13 O What do you do next? Okay. So what do you do next?
CvoA Thetights? They were on, {7 A We went over o where Boya was sleeping. Sergeant
© ) What dovou do? 1y attempted to wake him up but [ -- Falsa smelled a -- an
A Ohodwas wirh Sergeant Nathan Joseph. He went over to Li sdor of alechol in the air and he started getting
iy to wake ap Thomas, [ aggressive so the sergeant said he was going to detan
O Did sou walk slongside of him?? ’ S kim. [ think it was detain him tor now and then....
Voo Yesowr cod MROBROWN: I'moa litle concerned that the audio
O And dhout how ey steps would von say o may not pick up with the papers. What we may do is we may
A Bights Mayhe oy dovzen steps or more. } v call my office and just get them to record it there from the
G Wamtor cold nwde? ; < phone if that works for everyone, Does that work? | May ust
<A OhJitwas - seems like it was kind of -- getting kind {5 call my office, have them put it on speaker and record it
Gl i S ce o e aer aa pane o L v Y AR TN Y Y T T N T T w Y o =
O T (T NS SR
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Foyge Py ge I’{’lé
 Jigitally, Pm just afraid that the papers and stutf 1o may T A Ahout i or seven. . !
c he picking that up rather than his vaice and it -« it may not 2 And how were you walking? Who was in front, who was
T bhe though, Fmojust vaying that just to be defintely sure. 3 back! How were you walking?
N MR. INGALDSON: Do you want to go ofT recard and 4 A Oh, Sergeant Simon had one -- one side of the arm and [
S hsento? i had him on the other side and we were walking and we
- AR BROWN: Yeah, fet's just test it here u little [ s.ipped on the - Lknow xlipped on a trash bag that
bit, We'th take a break., ! was tafl of - [ don't know what it was, just whatever
: (Ot record) & was inside of it just took my feot out trom under me.
! AR BROWYN: Okay. Back on record and we just wanted 94 Sothere was just a = some Ope af hag an the tloor?
1o check the audio. [t scems to be working tine. Allright. 100 A Yos, itwas o black = 1 knpow it was a bluck trash bag
J Soyou had fustw alked over o Boya lying on the bed and It that was -« was on the floor.
I helieve that s ou said that vou were going to oy 1o 12 Okav. But nothing else was on the tloor?
: Jetain him or that Otficer Joseph was. What happens 14 A [Hooked down and my toot was....
N after that? 11 Seakblack trash bag but nothing ¢lse was on the floor?
T A Oh, Officer Joseph was going to de -- detain him so we 15 A Oh. that - there was a bunch of -- there was some uther
T handcutfed him up. He was resisting a little bit but got L6 stuffoo. 1ean't remember what they were though.
i him handeuffed up. Then we were going to bring him down 17 ¢ Wha?
L {0 the police department, Sergeant Simon and mysell. and 13 A [he -- the -- the place was @ mess.
B 4y we stirted poing toward the arctic -- or not the 1% Sothe lights were on?
Ll arctic entry. the main door that - you know. the door S0 A What's that?
wl that tlaps open 1o go down the steps. Boya started 21 Q The lights were on in the place?
o2 hicking. He started kicking and then he sat down on the 22 A 1think they was. I'm not sure. ]
S tloor, wrapped his Jegs around a pole and we were trying 23 Q Well, now, you said the place was a mess, is that right? '
4 10 pull his legs apart trom the pote und then he started 24 A Yes, you could see - you could see stutf laying on the
Licking some more. 25 tloor.
Page 23 Page Zz:
o () Okay. Now, how did you try to take his legs from the 1 @ Right. But now, you couldn't see that if it was dark at
: pole? z 4:30 in the morning in the winter, could you?
A Oh, well, [ stepped to the side and he was trying to pul 3 A Notachance. No, | don't think so.
4 his foot apart so they can separatc from being wrapped 4 (0 Now, it says in the police report that Nate and Joseph
¢ around the pole but each time he tried to tuke his foot, ¢) wrote that a flashlight was used to shine in Boya's face
o~ he just kept kicking, he'd kick out. 6 to see if he was awake or asleep and you wouldn't have
0 Mm-hmm. Now. what were you wearing? 7 had (o use a tlashlight it the light was on, would you?
= A Police uniform. 8 A No. you wouldn't have to if -- it the - the light was
¢ Did you have on acoat? R on.
A Yes 10 Q Soitcould make sense that the lights were off, is that
~ ) What kind of coat? 11 right?
S\ A police coat like the chiefs wear, 12 A Oh, that's right.
S 1) Didyou get kicked or apything by Mr. Olson? © .3 O And why wouldn't you turn the lights on?
S On - yes,sinoon the right - right below my knee on 14 A What you mean?
the right side severat different times. {15 O Why wouldn't you turn on a light if you're going into a
t ) How did thor s and when - Bova -~ bow did Thenas or Lo nlace?
Bova lund when fe eil! " A Some places -- seme houses you know where the light
v He was sitey Jown I asiting poation b e switches are and some seu Jop't.
) Soche stands up atthe red 1 that wacre ne's Lo And if the 1 ahts were off vou cosld not see the peaple
Bandeutied anthe Fed taving on the couch and the bed as soon as you went
Vv ; apstairs cither,
) Who handeutted bim!? A Oh.we seen them. There was -- there was hight enouh 10
; A Sergeant Joseph, S where you could ee who was who.
C4 ) Okay. And fram there. he stands and how many steps would {0 Q0 So the Tights were on?
| Log sy that ae teok Betore you fell? f A Yes. |think they were on hecause | recoenized Bo --
T " T r— : iy - o oo e ———r—T
0 Do Phages a0 ot
Y O™ONT Y Y ~ ~ay - —- '
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L Boya and then Yeah, the lights were on in the 1 Q  About how long did it take for Simon (o get there?

4 cutstde. They were on because 1 could -- from clean 20 Pdun'thnow, fike | said, between three (o -- three to
K across from where [ was with Boya, | could see Lgga 3 tive minutes. something bke that,

1 struggling with 1 Q  Sonow there's three ofticers in the house, s that

© Q You could see who struggling with «? ! right?

“ A Onthe bed. yeah, trying to -- Ligga was trying to pin him nA Yes,

' down to the bed. T And laseph s with

) Okay. But now. that didn't happen for a fittle while, g A Yes,
K Jdid it? Q. undhe's deained him. s that vour beliet?
A What do you mean by that? SN Yos,
€ Well Emean, you -- first vou walk in, you see them 11 Q  Andyouhave Boya on one shouider and Simon has Bova on :

. laving there, is that right? L2 the other shoulder, is that right?

PTOA Yes Y3 A Yes

S0 Q0 Pmjust trying to get the timing down. 14 Q  Andyoure walking eut with him. is that right?

A Mm-hmm, S5O Wewere - we - we were walking out with him.....

-6 Q Okay? And 3:00 in the morning, they're laying there what | 16 () Okay.

' looks like asleep. You walk over Lo them, is that right? LA L and then he stants....

7 A Yes, we walked over to Boya. 14 Q  And the lights are on?

4 Q  Okay. You wake him up, is that right? 19 A Yes.

7oA Yes. 1 <€ Q  Ardyouslip on atrash hag or sumcthing on the floor, is

1 Q  You handcutf him. is that right? g that right?
< A Yeah 22 A Yes.

210 And then you start to escort him out, you on one side, 23 Q Okay. And when you slip. who falls to the ground?

24 Joseph on the other side, is that right? 24 A Oh.bothofus. Allofus. In fact. I think all of us
2T A No, Simon. 25 went down. Yeah, we all went Jown and he went -- he came

Page 27 Tage 29}
Q  Okay. So Simon's on the other side and then -- where's 1 down on a sitting position,

z Juseph during this time”? 2 Q  Okay. Soall three of you fell. Do you think that you

3 A Oh, he was on the bed with * was -- he was 3 fell first because of the trash bag or who do you think

q struggling with on the hed. 4 fell first?

5 () When did Simon come? S5 A Idon'tknow, it's hard to tell. Everybody was going

6 A Oh, when the -- when the scrgeant called for assistance. 6 down.

T How long Jid that ake? T 0 Everybody went down?

® A Oh maybe coming wround three to five minutes, something | 8 A Yeah.

3 like that, 9 Q Yeah. Allright. So you now have three off -- three
-2 Q  Okay. Ler'sback up. Who went over to the bed to wake 10 people on the floor, the two officers and Boya. Now,
1 up Boya? i1 Boya was handcuffed now, is that right?

A SCFQCOHI .lust‘ph. 12 A Yes.

£ Okay. Who wats there when Boya was handcutted”? 13 € His hands are behind his back?
<4 A Just me and Sergeant Joseph and 114 A Yes.
<70 Okav. And at what point - so you're walking out with |15 O Anything keep you from standing up?

o HBova, You're on vre side. Joseph's on the other side? !’ 16 A No., we were -- we were ZOING 0 -~ we were tning 10
A NooSimon, 17 stand back up and bring him back out - bring him 10 the
€ Chay Sowhat's geing on while you're waiting for Simon ’ 13 rolice department after we..

fo get there? (13 0 Soyoustand up?

onthe --on

A Yes,and we were tnving to zet - and he starts - he

Vo Thesergaunt bud - be was detaning "

e Bedand Taae waching Bova, 1 starts Kicking - starts hickiy and he kicked me several
O Tustatticg there watching him? il times on the feg and ther 1 vhserved him 1o have borten
v Yeah juststanding there f - Simon several times on the jacket with his teeth.
(O Merevou taithiog wham ! 40 Sohitthe jacket, nor Simon?

N ALY ' 't
VN L5 A 1 don'tknow if he got 1o - to the meat or not. he was

RIS cr T ) TN LASES ~ See o e ¥ AL - - Rl ghe M- BPUESTE. Sty EEd
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L g coore i
N piting down, 1 would they have said okay, well, if somebody’s doing
b () Wha stood up first. you or Simon? . that, you just better leave? !
I A What's that? 4 A No )
1 1) Who stood up first. you or Simon? 4 () Would they have said you better shoot them?
A About all at the same time. DA No.
£ () Butnow, you were there and you were actually watching | 6 QO What would they have said?
him hite a jacket? Now, where were vou. .. T A Well, we «- we could have peppered him but we couldn't
3 A Al getting up. " pepper him then -~ though because there was kids in the
“ 0 Tmean - and what view did you have? Were you above 3 house and a baby.
o that or below that? L@ Butin - soin the police training you took years ago,
ST A Ohobwas just going -- getting up when | scen it Il what would they have said to do?
Lo € Okay. So what were you looking at when you stoed up? | 72 A | don't knew.
P A T was watching his feet because [ didn't want to et i Q You don't know?
it kicked anymore 4 A Oh, | can't remember.
1uQ 0 Were you watching his feet or his mouth? L5 Q  Soifthere would have been another otlicer there without
16 A His feet. o their taser. if all two -- the other two officers showed
L Okay. But ! thought you just said that you were looking | 2 / up without their taser, what would you have done?
-8 at his mouth. T A What would | have done?
19 A No. 14 Q Yeah.
20 Q  Which were you looking at? 20 A Thad no - like | told you, I didn't have a taser.
Y1 A [ was looking at his feet because | didn't want to get 21 Q 1know you didn't but the other officers did but if no
22 kicked anymore, 20 one would have had one, what would you have done?
23 So you didn't see him bite Simon's jacket. 23 A What would | have done? Well, I would have tried to pin
J9 A Ldid on my right as | was getting up, yes. 24 him to the floor so he -- pin his feet to the floor so he
<5 Q Okay. Allright. So you stand up. So Simon's still 15 can -- wouldn't kick anymore.
Page 31 Fage 33
A down then or is he standing up? 1 Q Okay. Allright. Now, instead of pinning his feet 1o
< A No, he got up too. 2 the floor so he wouldn't kick anymore, what did you see
P Q  Allright. Boya's still on the floor? 3 happen when an officer -- well, what did you see happen?
4 A Yes. He wraps his legs around the pole. He had his legs 4 A At what point?
' wrapped around the pole, 50 Well, you're standing up now.
¥ QO Okay. Now, on that palice training that you had years 5 A Okay.
’ ago, not the taser training, not any training you've had 70 Okay? And - right. you stoud up. Simon stood up and
5 since then, nothing that Hoelscher's told you but in the 3 Bova's on the Hoor, is that right?
3 training you had ycars ago, what do they tell you to do 9 A Yes
Lo if somebody did something like that? C Q Okay. And what do you sce happen?

i- A They didn't tell us what to do.

i ) They didn't tell you what to do? : kicking away. trying 1o kick away and then.....

1
1T A Well. he was kicking and -~ iike [ told you, he was
>
14 Q) Onthe tloor?

X A N
-4 QI somebody was resisting arrest, they didn't telf you ' A Yes,
L what to do’? FS Q0 Okay.
| SN Welllto use a -t use same foree 1 try 1o get them to Poe % He was kicking Sergeant Simon ard myselt while he was on
stop resisting, T the Hoor while we were tning (o et him up to bring him
() What hind of ferce were you supposed 1o se? I i athe Py and then |- und then Serucant foseph tased
Cv Whatdo vou mean by tat”? L,
@ Well. what were veu taught back in that police training | O Okay. Josepiviased viar Now, Joseph -- 5o Joseph walis
YOU WO Leans age ' : avertrem L
A Wl there was nothing we could do. any kind of force we } SV NS - he was haldieg - e was wrestling with
Conid use. hecause he was kicking, Eyveny ime we tricd i the bed trying to held Juwn und he -+ he st

‘ to et close 10 him. he started Kicking some more, [ amed and - a0t aimed and shot nut poist and shet,
’ 1) Butnew, n that police training you took sears ago, D0 S ads wrestling with unother amestee.

‘\ b 2 o v * - TETRTT =t 7 ——r T A —<an v Y jareste i zachs aa- 3
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Fage 34 Faoe o
LA Yes. he was wresthing with... 1 Q Orsecing that title”?
Q. or another defendant und while he's doirg that, he 2 A Probably in my -- the training book.
4 takes his taser out and aims it at someone clse and 3 Q Okay.
3 shoots, is that right? 4 A Buooklet
A Yeah, Well he hnew who he was shooting, He - he knew | S @ You forgot part of that.
" who he was tasing, &6 A Yus
() ls that something you were taaght by -« is that sumething 7 @ Okay. Is it fair to say that you may have forgot some of
n Ofticer Hoelbwher taught you to Jo? 9 the things you've learned in that traiming course”
¢ A What's that! 9 A Yes, | forgot some of 1
S ) to--ifyou're in the middle of a wrestiing match with 10 Allnght. 1t says here it the subject is not reacting,
2 vne detendant, take out your taser and aim it at someune 11 the energy is most likely shorting out and may not he
) clhe? 12 effective. Does that sound like something you'se leamed
L MR. INGAL DSON: Object to the form ot it 13 before”?
Y3 A Wello we were being assaulted. 14 A Yes. Onthe tasers, yes.
10 Q  Okay. Was Officer Joseph being ussavlled? 5 Q  Allright. Soif you shot a taser at someone or if
Lo A No.he was tning -- like 1 told you, he was trying to 1e someone shot a taser at someone and that person yelled is
L hold down 17 that all you've got, bitch, or it feels like a vibrator,
Lo Okay. And was there any reason -- just a secord here. 13 probably the connection was not made, is that correct?
L (Pause) Now, would it surprise you -- | know il's been 19 A That's true.
I wome time but would it surprise you to fearn that Officer 20 Q  Allright. Because you would expect more of a reaction
2l Joseph wrote in his report that he heurd Corporal Stmon's 21 if a person was actually hit with a taser, is that right?
H taser go ot first? 22 A VYes,
-1 A Tdon'tknow. 23 () Okay. We've got a lot of documents here. I'm sorry.
S Q) Would that surprisc you to hear that? 24 A Well, okay.
Z00A No. 25 Q Your attorneys are doing a good job. ‘They gave a lut of
Pacqe 35 Fage
Q  Okay. Sois it possible that Simon actually tased Boya 1 documents to us. Now, so he -- his teet are wrapped
z first? 2 around the pole and you say he's kicking and [ -- help me
T A 1don't know, it could be. 3 understand how that is if someone’s feet arc around a
i Q  Allright. Now, what do you know about tasers? [f they 4 pole. they're also kicking. Just tell me how they
. make a noise, what does that mean? 5 were.....
€A Well, it depends on what type of noise they make. 6 A Well, see, they were out like this. He would pull them
() Okay. Did vou ever -- what did -- what's that slogan. 7 apart and start kicking.
4 something like silence is golden or something like that? 5 Q And why didn't you just back up?
3 Tell me about that. 9 A Wedid -- we did several times.
L A What do you mean by that? 3 Q Now. he...
"1 Well, as far as your training, actually, that your 11 A But how else are we going to get him out of the building
b aftorneys gave me that you learned so | was just asking 12 il we -- we Keep -- let him Keep his feet wrapped around
L3 you about that. I'll give it to you here. Well, just a 1 the. ...
P4 second. Silence is Golden. Do you ever remember seeing | 14 O And were his - his hands were handeutted the whole time !
[ this document? I'l give it to you. 15 Yes.
’ MRUINGALDSON: Sean, do you mind just identifying | -~ (0 And hehind his back or i front ol fiim
what 1t 57 LA Behind his back.
MROBROWN: Yeah, [ willl Yeah P17 Q0 Okay. And he was laying on the Noor. hands behind b«
(3 looking atexhibit F of defendant's motien for ) s Fack”
~umrmary judgment. [ mark this depositon exhibu 1, S Nt laving, he was sitt oy fon auhile,
v hay, S Okay
(G Hoshould be A but Jep -- deposition exinbit A, Al i C A MOAL-= most of the tinae he was i,
right. Silerce s Golden, Davou eser remember seeing 10 0 A rght, How < sa it persen s sitting. they rea'in
L4 camtkick to the side. can thes? They st kick

strarght up ii they're sitting down. 15 that rght?

L.‘ A Mmm
0 . Tap o k
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Fige 33 a7
E A Oh, | think they -- when he pulled apart. he can kick I Q Okay.
this way, he can kick upwards and -- when he pulled his < A There's -- there -- there is 3 wall over here — a wall
3 feet apart. ] aver here,
q 4 \Why did you not walk behind him? 1 Q Right. Draw the wall then. 1
{ A Because | was already in front of him, 5 A Okay. The wall's right here.
&) Well. 1 -- I've been in the house and | know you have too | 6 Q@ Okay. And how was he suting?
p but there was nothing preventing you from just walking A He was atting facing the -- more tike this way toward
; - hehind him and (ediscernible - simultaneous speaking). o ne.
- © A Yeah, but this is - we wore almost right up against the 30 Oh okay. But his legs were around the pole?
L -- you seen the flap of the arctic entry? LU A [His back was toward - his back was toward the door.
) L1 ) Back was toward the door. Okay. Why didn't you alt just

Mm-hmm,

Well, we was almost right up agamst that thing and --to | 17 walk around behind him and pick him up?

A Because, like ) told you, he kept kicking every time we

ey
P
[
—

s

wo Jown.

L4 Abbthree of you? L4 moved.
f] 12 A No,justtwo ot us and Thomas. +5 Q  Okay. But his legs are wrapped.....
f 1 16 0 Allright. And -- but the pole’s on the other side. 16 A He would move it -- he would unwrap his legs tfrom the .
S 7 A NoLiUs -- it's -- you go right up the steps in and 17 pole and move and start kicking. Every time we'd try to
13 nght across from there, there's the pole as you went. L8 stand him up, he would do the same thing,
[" LY QO Butifhis feet were around the pole, his back would have | 19 Q  But there's plenty of room in there that you could have
: 2 been toward the stair. S0 moved around without being kicked?
U Yes. 21 A No, there isn't that much room.
{ L2 So his back was to you? 22 Q Could you have walked over to the left?
f 3 23 A Yes. No,1wasin front of him, see? | was in front 23 A Icould have but that would -- that would have heen way
* £4 down the -- the other side. 24 away from Boya.
25 Q) Oh. 1thought you said you both were hehind himby the | 25 O But his legs were around the pole and he was handcutTed,
J' i ?age 39 Fage 4]
sTair. i right?
. 2 A No. See, he -- Simon was on one side and | wasonthe | 2 A Yes.
: 3 other side and when -- as you look at it that way, | was 3 Q Soyoucould have circled around behind him?
! ,' ! on the front side. 4 A No.l-lcouldn't have. | would have to step over
| 5 Q Okay. Nuw, it just seems like your story's changing a 0 somebody.
y l ' fittle bit. I just want to be sure we're clear on it. 6 Q Who would you have had to step over?
Y i 7 Just a moment ago, you said that both officers were on 7 A Fither Boya or I'd have to go around Simon. i
Ld ' 5 the side of the stair. Is that what you just said? 8 Q But!thought he was sitting here with his back to this.
f 3 A No, I didn't say on the side of the stairs. A Yeah, but there's not enough -- there was not enough room

Q Okay. Isaid all three of you and you said no, two ofus | 1C  in here to go around him.
were over where the little door flaps up. 11 Q Could you have come to the side of him?

14 A Oh okay. L2 A What do you mean by that?
13 Q) Is that right? 13 0 Could you have walked over and picked him up from the
! 24 A No, he wa - Sergeant Simons was on this one side and 1 | 14 side?
19 A Yeah, but he -- he was kicking.
T And lets draw that our. Draw where the stairs come up. | 7 ) Okay Sanow, when the first taser was deployed from
L7 A Okav. Here's where the stairs go up. You g0 up and C Otficer Joseph -- you believe it was Officer loseph -«
ol there is a Happing door and over toward this way. t L where was he sitting here?

- there's o pole where he kept -- Simons was on this side Y Okay. He was over here, semewhere around this bed bere
o and Dwas onthis side and he kept wrapping his legs
around this pele

[N
.
-

5 ) wiis on his other side

!
I where -~ where he was wrestling with
f 1O Okay. 1 theught was on the couch.
[ .
A Yeaho Wello s a couch, veah. Welll it was a couch,

S0 Okay. What's thiw?
P A This s the space between here and the. i seah. ftwis -« he was over i this area anyway. e was
P Right. but that's neta wail. ho - he was wrest - wrestling with .inying to hold
' [ A No f ’ down.
O D i I o SIS 1
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Fige 42 Pag= 44k
I Q  What's over here? 1 A No
A What's over here? 2 Okay. Allright. How far do you think Officer Joseph i
1 Pmlooking at. . 3 was when he deployed that taser on Boya? 1
4 A Okay. Fhere's more bunk -- there was more bunk beds. 1 A Well, about the length from this door maybe a fittle bit
o) I'mmarking that area with an A, what's over here. 5 longer to where you're sitting.
A A Bunk beds. There was more bunk beds. 6 (O  Allright. Okay. So the first taser goes off. How many
J  Bunk beds? 7 times Jdo you think that Simon Jdeployed his taser or a Jry
YA Yes, bunk beds. 3 stun, in your estimate?
¢ s that where Thomas was Jaying when you fiest went in? 9 A Either four or five imes.
oA Yes, 10 Q@ And what about Juseph?
() Okay. And where are sou standing there of those three 11 A Ihave noidea, | wasn't paying attention to him, |
Jdots vou have there? Put the one that's you, Put g -- 12 was. .
B an O on it 13 Q  Allright. Now, what have you learned about from -- you
134 A Okay. What -- what period are you talking about”? 14 said Chief Hoelscher trained you, is that right?
- Q  Right there when vou drew that, 15 A Yos.
1+ A\ When | drew this? Well 1 -- like I told you, | was over 16 Q And what have you leamed about the use of a taser? So
! here. 17 this is about 12 times total, is that right?
L% Okay, Putan O by that so we know, Okay. And whoisto | 18 A What's that?
N your right? 19 Q How many times did you say Joseph did it?
A Sergeant Simon. 20 A Ihave noidea.
:1 ) Okay. Putun S there. And Boya is where? 21 Q Tasered? About how many times, in your estimate”?
2o A Boyais right here. 22 A lhave no idea how many times he.....
J 3 Q Legs where? 23 Q More than once?
24 A Wrapped around the pule. 24 A Oh, most likely it was more than once.
2T Q Sitting up? 25 Q Okay. Andthen Simon about how many?
Fage 43 Fage 45 )
A Sitting up. 1 A Maybe four or five. ,
2 O Now, from there. he definitely couldn't kick you, could 2 Q Okay. Sowe've at least got six or seven there, is that
3 he? 3 right?
4 A Why wouldn't there. I'm -- I'm out of range at the 1 A Yes
£ time..... 5 Now. in the training you took trom Chief Hoclscher. when
s Oh. £ was that?
TOA L because | was getting tired of getting kicked on my 7 A Maybe three or tour -- three -- maybe three years ago,
g knee -- below my knee, either. A something around there.
“ () And where were you standing when that was happening? | 9 Q So when you're standing there watching these two men. you
L A | wastrying to - we were trying to stand him up. We 1o -- now. you have seniority over them. I don't know that
o were both up close and then trying to stand him up 11 in rank wise but you've heen there longer than these two
L2 and ... 12 men. haven't you?
13 ¢ Okay. Soyou got some kicks on your knee! 13 A More - yes.
14 A Yes,sir, 14 Q Okay. Soyou've been there several years. You've had
f50) Allright. And Simon got kicked where? 1% the academy training, is that right?
2 A Hdont know, | have nodea because the -- [ was trying oA Palice ncademy.
- i keep trom bemng kicked at the same time. [ couldn't f 7 Right, and you've also had training on the taser, iy that
R watch Simon - Simon and try 1o -- he Kept on Heing 1R 1 ght?
o kicked But Fhnow he was heing kicked. A Vs
P Seas you got xicked on the Whinor feg or knee or COt 0 Okav. Now, you sabd carlier vow do not remember the
s whittever, yourhack up a couple steps? Ts that what vou } ol resdricted wses of the advarced taser, is that right?
- Jo? SRS T FUS
A Yes ’ S osay Faant to remind you of wore of thase Okay”
i Okay. Albnght. Are you ever on the Hoor anymore [ R S
= Y other than that one tme? jer Q \nd this may help out the other guys too who are i Fere
p TR T A IR AL ol hd it i SOMMR i | et SRR JrS £o 2o 4 1O iatbage Cam o~ . o op ) Y= TR T T PR Ty =
~ PUEERAE B Tt B D
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f Py o n RS ]
a : but all right.  The advanced raser shall not be used on g 1 so - 10 minutes. Let's put in another tape. This will be
: restrained or contrelled subject unless the actions of 2 the end of this tape and we will put in another one now
‘ the subject present an immediate threat of death or great } {OY record)
‘] i bodily haem or a substantial physical struggle that could 4 Allright. Understand you are sull under oath.
¥ resuft inanjury to themselves or another person SOA Yes
' including the deploying offices. Do you remember reading ' 6 Q Okay. Allright. We just had a short break. We retum
" that? b now  We are back on record and we were talking and we
;J S A Yes, : put in a new tape which is why we had 10 tuke the break
N © ) Okay. Now, s that what you were tramed? 3 So we were talking a hittle bit about what was going on
. A Yes N that mght. How do you tinally get Boya on tus feet?
™ Lo ) But vou didn't remember it on that night, is that right? LT A He finallv decided he would come along.
} v Oh LU0 Okay,
‘ MRUINGALDSON: Object to the form A Hell
1 O Youcan st answer. 14 Q Gouwon.
; 1 .o A lremembered it - | remembered it that -- that night but 15 A He decided he -- he said | give up, I give up, | give up,
ot -~ like | told you. | didn't have a taser so | -- | b 't come along, 111 come on so he came along.
: wasn't thinking but it | did have a taser, | most likely 7 Q) Allright. Now, in that academy training you had year
. L would have tased him because he was kicking, kicking, Y ago, what were some of the techniques that you would have §
| ; Lo Kicking us so much. 19 used? | know that you said you would hold their legs
b Q) So you would have probably tased him 0o? 0 Jdown, restrain their legs. What were some of the other
LA HfThad a taser. 21 techniques besides that that you would have used?
i So that would have added -- if there was 12, then you << A Oh, if he wasn't kicking, | would have tried to stay
) } would have added some more, is that right? 23 still, you know?
o MR WIDMLER: Objection. 24 Q  Okay. Allright. Now, let me have here just a second.
o MRUINGALDSON: Object to the form. R Officer Joseph had admitted to deploying the taser aboul
’i Page 17 Fage 1o
3 |
' It there had have been 12 tasers, you would have tased 1 five times and also Charles Simon has admitted to
) him more, is that right? 2 deploying the taser dry -- and drive stunning him.
B ; MR.INGALDSON: Object to the form. 3 A Okay.
: i 4 A Ohne, not - not if he was -- he was already tased so | 4 Q  Now, in that training that Hoelscher gave you, what are
L 2 Jidn't .- Fdidn't have -- have to but [ -- I most likely & the commen effects of being tasered?
1 ‘. would have tased him if Thad one when | -- we first got G A Oh, heing tased? [t sort of like freezes you up and then
L f - there because the sergeant was wrestling tning o detain you can't feave.
¥ e “and I most Likely would have tased him..... 8 Okay. Ihat'sone. What clse? There's one, two. three,
© Q Okay. 9 four, five, six, seven, eight, nine on the sheet that he
A L while he was kicking us. 15 learned.
; P00 Did you do any thing to stop either one of thase guys from 1A Okay.
L tasing Thomas multiple times? 12 MR INGALDSON: Object 1o the form.
. ‘ <A Noat st happened so fast. Ls ) Do you have anything else that you can think of or just
5 How fast? | that one?
TT A drwas real tast because he was Kicking, next thing he 154 Just that one. t
was Kicking -« Fewas heeking us and then we went Jown -7 OXay. Deyou have any memory that a person may vell er
¢ - ind ... L seream when tased?
O Now rour aiorrey s gy that it toek -4y ad e A Yes some of them ye - Bave a terdency tovell.
' i Fhats e on fen e minie oy ‘ S0 nd Thomas velled and sereamed when he was tasered,
- e i aeht?
N Ve i A Yes Hewas volline ves
4 MROINGALSOND Ohbject 1o the tarm, ; 0 Okay Sechars actually an eifect of the taser, is that
o Lodar gt ¢ et
v CvoudiPle reopensed, f i MROWIDMER- Dbjection, 1t's oneliusory
L MR, BROWN: See how I'm doing en recorcing eme bere .7 MRUINGALDSON: Object 1o the form, feundation
B o B e AL < A s T r SNSRI A Trrer—rr
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